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4 Report from the President
ERHES

2009 was a year of developing bonds and relationship with allied professional institutes and government officials.

In order to better promote professional connection between with our Mainland members and counterparts, the
Board of the Mainland Affairs coordinated the Guangdong Forum, Hebei trips, and invited the University of Hong
Kong and the Tsinghua University to conduct a cross-boundary research Study with the support of Professional
Services Development Assistance Scheme (PSDAS) to compare the job scopes of both architects in Hong Kong and
Mainland.

The webpage listing out all HKIA Registered Practices with website details had been hyperlinked to the web page
of the Architectural Services Department.

This year members of HKIA had continued to make our professional contributions to numerous significant local
issues of public concern in support of promoting heritage conservation, environment efforts, urban design
frameworks and public policies.

Major collaborative efforts with the government including Ideas Competition for Waterfront Development at Ex-North
Point Estate Site, Ideas Competition for the Development of a Piazza in Tsim Sha Tsui and Bruce Lee's Residence Ideas
Competition were widely recognized by the communities.

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects had supported with Internet Professional Association (iProA) to establish
HKIA / local architects branding globally and explore the Asia and China market for more business opportunities
through digital means.

To ride on the success of Hong Kong-Shenzhen Bi-city Biennale of Architecture and Urbanism (“Bi-city Biennale”)
in 2007, the Institute continued to join hands with the Hong Kong Institute of Planners and Hong Kong Designers

Association to organize the Bi-city Biennale 2009 in West Kowloon Culture District for a 3-month exhibition.

A newly designed HKIA website was launched in September 2009. May our members find it informative, helpful
and user-friendly.

| would like to show my appreciation to the HKIA Sports Team, especially Dragonboat team and football team
which respectively won the Championship at the Joint Professional Sports Tournaments.

Let's display our concerted effort to promote architectural excellence in Hong Kong and beyond!

Anna Sum-yee Kwong, MH, FHKIA
President
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Report from the President

BRHES

2009F BRAS BN HRBSAEMEF B R EIHFRI RO —F
REPBIHEEANSEROECBNFXEME - ASORMBHEELEN T [EDE] HmEBATICK - 1
£ [EXRBEERENSE] 00525 NEFEBABHNEEASRRITERM - LREBNAMRZENESE
5

ABSIRBOR BB EAMERNSHOBE (BREATRILEHE) @ BHRREEGIZESIRES -

EBEN—FA - SSERBRTDBEZNARELINEAAMSBEFHERER/  STHFEEXRE - BRL
E ~ MMDsRSHESAAFEER

SIRPNSIFNEZ LIFNEESEILERE - L TFEERItAIRBERMERETILE  SOVEEX
BHREHBNZT/) BB =REE

SN AR ESHR ORREX S B BHMREATINERABSURNEREM - BEELNPRDEY
BESEIFEIERK -

20078 (&8 — RMH/RZRENETRE (CNEFR) | +oM))  XSBESE - REBRENS2S
NEBREIEHSBEETF - 0N\ EXCESH/RIIERV2009FEMETE

ABZSHEHBIOEIR2009FoOB/MA - FWILERTS - RSERKESEREHT -

ann

REBRMEE - OASZEDEX - FRIREABNEKEIE - AHSEXMEB P - BM<ZKEODBIER -

FHDARBEARINGD - £EB RN ERERERMINES RZRR!

BB REBETSREING

REDS  SERANSCEFEE

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2009

5



6

Board of Local Affairs (BLA) and its committees

AMEHLRRETEES

Board of Local Affair (BLA)
A B HEP

T i
CHAN Hon Wan Edwin, Chair

HO Kin Wai Stephen, Deputy Chair
LEUNG So Wan Susan, Deputy Chair
KWONG Sum Yee Anna (ex-officio)
LAM Kwong Ki Dominic (ex-officio)
CHAN Shu Keung (since April 2009)
CHAN Sui Tung Tony

CHAN Yuen Ning Janice

CHOI'Wun Hing Donald (since October 2009)
FONG Suet Yuen Carolin

HO Man Yiu Ivan (il August 2009)

LAM Hong Ki Connie

LAM Wo Hei

LAU Kwing Lam Glenn

LEE Chung Ming

LEUNG Hay Lin Helen (since April 2009)
LEUNG Kit Man Andy

LIM Wan Fung Bernard

NG Wing Shun Anthony Vincent
POON Ho Lun Allen

TAM Wai Lam William

WAI Man Fai Jackson

WONG Kam Sing

YIM Shun See

YU Franklin

Buildings Committee

EEMERNEZESES
T i
CHAN Sui Tung Tony, Chair

TSANG Wai Yin Michael, Deputy Chair

Competition Committee

RBRERSIEEES®
R 1
LAM Hong Ki Connie, Chair

HUI Jia Qi Philip, Deputy Chair

-~
MREE (F7)
TEE (BIERE)
RRE (BIERE)
BINE (BERES)
MHIE (ERES)
FB &R (20094 SE)
G3ES

PeR1OIS

SBETB] (H2009F 1054E)
HER

837 2% (F2009F8510)
MERIE

M0

£V (EIY

2{es

SDEE (B20005F4518)

REEL

B
RIELL

”~
IRIRER (£/8)
LRE @ER)

[
MERTH (L&)
StEIH (BIERE)
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District Works Committee

HWEEKEER
R 1 A ”
POON Ho Lun Allen, Chair BEm (R

LAU Kam Sing Dickie, Deputy Chair 25385 (BIERE)

Environment & Sustainable
Development Committee

BREROUNERZREZES
R 1 [
FONG Suet Yuen Carolin, Chair PHER (£E)

Heritage & Conservation Committee

ERMMRAEZES

IR T [l

LEE Chung Ming, Chair {083 (£E)
WU Wai Sheung, Deputy Chair AR (BIER)

Planning & Lands Committee

BERMHBEES
R 1 [
YU Franklin, Chair REIL (/)

TAM Wai Lam William, Deputy Chair FER BIER)

Taskforce on Constitutional
Development Review

HHlEEREEM

LR . '

CHOI' Wun Hing Donald, Convenor RO (EHEN)
(since October 2009) (EH20094F 1058)

West Kowloon Cultural District Taskforce

CAEpAR=-Y=—¢ |

TR [

LEUNG Hay Lin Helen, Convenor REE (HEN)
(since April 2009) (t 59200%545{ )
CHAN Shu Keung, Deputy Convenor bR (BISEN)
(since April 2009) (FH20095F4/5#E)
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Board of Educational Affairs (BEdA)

HAESHED
T i
WAI Chui Chi Rosman, Chair

LAM Sau Lai Monica, Deputy Chair
TANG Wai Kin, Deputy Chair
KWONG Sum Yee Anna, ex-officio
LAM Kwong Ki Dominic, ex-officio
CHAN Yuen Ning Janice

CHEN Marvin

CHAN Ching Ying Elizabeth
CHOW Wai Lee

CHU Hoi Shan Paul

FUNG Yin Suen Ada

HO Puay Peng

HUI Man Bock Bernard

LERNER Ralph Bennett

MO CHU Kwok Wah Julie

POON Sing Chi Stephen

WILL Barry Fegan

WONG Po Lung John

YIP Shing Lam Sherman

YIU Chin Pang Benjamin

Continuing Professional
Development Committee

FEEXEREEESE
LR .
YIP Shing Lam Sherman, Chair

Education Development &

Accreditation Committee

HERERRISBSEES
RN
WILL Barry Fegan, Chair

WONG Po Lung John, Deputy Chair

[
EE L (L)
MEE (BIERE)
BREER (BIEE)
BOIG (EARERS)
MATE (ERES)
peRpuIn
507978
BEF
[FEig
FKal
REE
IS IE,
ST
SR
ERBEE
B AERE
2188
ES=¢
TR
uSsis

[
ENNED )

[ o
SIBH (£7)
TEE (FER)

Membership Admission Committee

SESKEED

IR T [

CHAN Yuen Ning Janice, Chair PRI ()
LAM Sau Lai Monica, Deputy Chair WEE (BIERE)

Professional Assessment Committee

FFATEES
LR e .

WONG Po Lung John, Chair I=s E(I/%)
LAI Siu Kin Rembert, Deputy Chair ZUBER (BIERE)

Education & Careers Expo Working Group
HERBFEBETE/)E

TR T »
YIU Chin Pang Benjamin, Chair WS ()
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Board of Internal Affairs (BIA)

' l; ~ Board of Internal Affairs (BIA) and its committees

ABSHBRETNEES

RIS HED

IR T [ ol

YEUNG Lai Fong Alice, Chair BEE (L)
SUN Polly, Deputy Chair HINE (BIERE)
CHAN Chi Sing Rex, Deputy Chair bRESE (BIE/RE)
KWONG Sum Yee Anna, ex-officio BINE (BERES)
LAM Kwong Ki Dominic, ex-officio MATH (ERES)
CHOI Kam Lung Franky B2
CHOI'Wun Hing Donald E i
LAITung Yiu Stan Bidesh

LAM Sai Kit Ed Mt

LU Yuen Cheung Ronald EpvES

NGAN Man Ho Murphy PANHS

WONG Ching Long Jerome e

WONG Kam Sing =L

YUEN Chung Keung Dixon =858
Annual Awards 2008 Committee

2008 FFREER

TR [

LAM Sai Kit Ed, Chair M (FE)
Annual Ball Committee

BEREEES

AT T [l

NGAN Man Ho Murphy, Chair BANIS (EE)
100-year of Architecture in

Hong Kong Committee
BEOFREES®

TR »”
LAITung Yiu Stan, Co-Chair ZRERNR (L)
YUEN Chung Keung Dixon, Co-Chair RIBR (BERE)
Media Resources &

Publication Committee
HRRENEES

IR T [l

CHAN Chi Sing Rex, Co-Chair [RE2 (HEE)
CHOI'Wun Hing Donald, Co-Chair SR (B FERE)
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Quality Building Awards
2010 Organising Committee

BERREAR2010EE2

R 1
CHOI Kam Lung Franky, Representative 22383t (f05%)

HAU Hon Fai Patrick, Representative =218 ()

Student and Graduate
Member Committee

BEEXLESFSE
TR [
WONG Ching Long Jerome, Chair BWEA (£/F)

Welfare and Activities Committee

BAREHEES
R [
WONG Ching Long Jerome, Chair EHWER (£E)

Young Architect's Committee

STFREMESES
RN T
CHOI' Kam Lung Franky, Chair

o

£23mEe (_—7:'/%‘)
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: l; " Board of External Affairs (BEXA) and'itsscommittees

 BIEBHERETEZEE

Board of External Affairs (BExA) Overseas Excursion

BINSFES Organising Committee

IR T ” N SRE =

TANG Wai Man Tony, Chair SR (£/) -

CHOI Kam Lung Franky, Deputy Chair 223388 (I £/%) CHAN Yuk Yin Celine, Chair BERE ()
NGAN Ka Sin Ellen, Deputy Chair PRl (BIEE) LU Lyn Wah Dennis, Deputy Chair SHE (BIELRE)
KWONG Sum Yee Anna, ex-officio BB (EREE)

LAM Kwong Ki Dominic, ex-officio MHIE (BRES) UIA Committee

CHAN Chui Yi Corrin fRE25P BRRSfipessSe

CHAN Yuk Yin Celine R E TR -

CHOW Wai Lee [BEE HO Kin Wai Stephen, Chair O2E (£E)
DEE Josie 25 IU Che Wei Trevor, Deputy Chair YhES(E (BIERE)
HO Kin Wai Stephen (=351

IU Che Wei Trevor BrEsE UIA Work Programme Region

KEE Yee Chun Tristance EH IV 'Architecture for All' Committee

KWAN Kwok Lok Joseph Eﬁﬁfxéﬁ DR EERE

LUSH Alexander [ 2

SHEN Edwar e e

TAM Hon Wah Billy EEE IU Che Wei Trevor, Chair YR (£E)
WONG Kin Ming Robert Fze HO Kin Wai Stephen , Deputy Chair 02, (BIERE)

Academic Exchange Committee

BMRAEES
IR T [l
CHOI Kam Lung Franky, Chair SR8 (£/F)

CAA/ARCASIA Committee
RGP HEEM RS CNERNHTEEES

R 1 A o
WONG Kin Ming Robert, Chair T3 (%)

Community Development Committee

1 EBERRIEREES

IR T =

TAM Hon Wah Billy, Chair BEE (L)
Lam Sai Kit Ed, Deputy Chair WHEE (BIERE)

10 The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2009



Board of Practices (BP) and its commlttees

ﬂb%%%‘u[ﬁiﬁ%"l(%ﬁ

Board of Practices (BP) Legal & Finance Committee

HESHD ERRUBEES

IR T " IR T "

HO Man Yiu Ivan, Chair 13232 (£%) CHEN Marvin, Chairman A (££8)
LAU Kwing Lam Glenn, Deputy Chair 200 (BIERE)

50 Ching, Deputy Chair RS (BILRE) Membership Committee

KWONG Sum Yee Anna, ex-officio BINE (BERES) NIEEEES

LAM Kwong Ki Dominic, ex-officio MK (ERES) RN T -

CHE Kwai Leung Chris E=s TSENG Yen Wei William, Chair ZIEE (£FE)
CHEN Marvin :97 9%

CHIANG Hong Man Michael BEX Practice Issues Committee

HAI Tuen Tai Freddie RIRZR BN/ SEEEREES

HUI Man Bock Bernard ST e i
KRUMMECK Stefan Wilhelm LOK Man Fai Felix, Chair REXHE (£58)
LAM Ping Hong Robert WEs HSIUNG Yee Ming Donna, Deputy Chair  88/K88 (BI£/Z)
LAM Wo Hei M0

LOK Man Fai Felix FEkE

NG Wing Shun Anthony Vincent KRXIE

SHEN Edward PzS |

SZE Kyran o2 B

TSE Si Wing Vivien EIER

TSENG Yen Wei William =L

WONG Kam Sing BiRE

Business Promotion Committee

FHHEEEES
AT T [
CHIANG Hong Man Michael, Chair BEX (/)

Contract & Dispute Resolution Committee

BRESHRABARUNEEEER
R 1 [
SHEN Edward, Chair MRS ()

CHAN Hon Wan Edwin, Deputy Chair 2= (BIZ£/E)
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: l; - Board of Mainland Affairs (BMA) and its committees
N SHBRETEES

12

Board of Mainland Affairs (BMA)

RS FEEL

TAMTin Fong Martin, Chair
CHIWuh Cherng Daniel, Co-Chair
LAU Man Kwan Julia, Co-Chair
KWONG Sum Yee Anna, ex-officio
LAM Kwong Ki Dominic, ex-officio
CHAN Wai Sze Cissi

CHEN Marvin

CHAN Ching Ying Elizabeth
CHEUNG Kwong Wing

CHOW Tak Nin Thomas

CHOW Wai Lee

HO Man Yiu Ivan

HUI Man Bock Bernard

LI Kwok Hing Felix

LU Hing Yiu Bryant

POON Sing Chi Stephen

SHEN Edward

TANG Kai Chung Paul

TANG Wai Man Tony

-
FERN(ER)
WFET (BIERE)
B E (BIERE)
BOIE (BRES)
MATE (ERES)
PRESS

L5507 9ve

BEFA

RAHFE

BT

SE=y

EpvE=

ST

ZEm

BB

AR

pzSEl

ERUR

=18

Eastern China Liaison Committee

ERWRESZ

CHAU Yuet Chu, Co-Chair
HAI Tuen Tai Freddie, Co-Chair

-
BRI (HLRE)
RinzR (WLRE)

Southern China Liaison Committee

ERMRESZ

CHOW Tak Nin Thomas, Co-Chair
HO Ting Fung Albert, Co-Chair
YEUNG Ka Sing Ben, Co-Chair

-
[EfRF (L)
TEL (WLRE)
SXE (WLR)

Northern China Liaison Committee

FEMREESZ

RN T
AU Chung Leung Joanlin, Co-Chair

CHAN Dennis Hong Ming, Co-Chair

TING Shiu Hang Allan, Co-Chair

-
BRCPIR (BFESE)
IRERDS (L/E)
TaE (WERE)
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Mutual Recognition Committee
OB - ARREHEES

IR T ”~

TAMTin Fong Martin, Chair BRI (E/E)
Special Projects Committee
BRREESS

AN T [l

LI Kwok Hing Felix, Chair T (FE)

Engineering Consultant
Qualification Taskforce

RREEESTIE/)E

DR T [

SHEN Edward, Chair TR ()
512 Hong Kong Architects
Redevelopment Taskforce

BEREMS 1288 T/E/\E
R ”
TANG Wai Man Tony, Chair BEN (EE)
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Jp“'?

“'"' 'HKIA Annual Awards 2008
BEREMBE_BF/\FFR

HKIA Medal of the Year

of Hong Kong
BERRHNSS
EFREREEAR

Jockey Club Creative Arts Centre
BFSRIREMPIL

HKIA Merit Award
of Hong Kong
EERENRE
BERERR

St. Andrew's Church &

Kindergarten
EZBIERWER

HKIA Merit Award

of Hong Kong
EEREGSS
ENERR

HKICC Lee Shau Kee School

of Creativity
EBNEARER

"ll--- - -f-f--uﬂ '
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HKIA Annual Awards 2008

SERENSS_BT/\FER

President's Prize
SRER

Learning Resources Centre,
Hong Kong Institute of
Vocational Education (Sha Tin)
SEBEERESR

DB RBBERDIL

Special Architectural
Award - Heritage
TRARER - YR

Ping Shan Tang Clan Gallery cum
Heritage Trail Visitors Centre
BER YEEE
SYPEFHZPIN

Special Architectural
Award - Urban Design
TRAR IR —FTHERE
Stanley Waterfront

Improvement Project
MERETRR

H-ul"" s P,
Vi A
NSRS
o T R T
off L= i Rl v
J NG
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; HKIA Annual Awards 2008
EERRMBE_TH/\FFR®

Special Architectural
Award - Accessibility
TSR —EERRE
Caritas Lok Kan School
BIERLENB

Special Architectural
Award - Alteration &
Addition Works
TR —
NERNEIRE
Skyhigh Creative Partners
RIECSBIFKH

Special Architectural
Award - Jury's Special Prize
FTRRER — FBFIR
"Re-fabricating City" Hong Kong-
Shenzhen Bi-city Biennale of
Urbanism and Architecture 2007
"B 2007EEE - RIEH
RRENETRE
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Deed of Constitution?
RIS

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED being met together on the third
day of September in the year one thousand nine hundred
and fifty-six and being desirous of forming a Society in
the Colony of Hong Kong for the general advancement
of Civil Architecture and for promoting and facilitating
the acquirement of the knowledge of the various Arts
and Sciences connected therewith DO HEREBY BAND
OURSELVES TOGETHER IN A SOCIETY TO BE KNOWN AS THE
HONG KONG SOCIETY OF ARCHITECTS and do undertake
as Foundation Members to subscribe to the funds and
be bound by the Rules of the Society AND DO FURTHER
DECLARE AND AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1. that the Society shall consist of Members, Honorary
Members, Associates, Graduates and Students;

2. that the Society shall elect and be governed by a
Council consisting of a President, two Vice-Presidents,
and such other Officers and Members of Council as it
may decide;

3. that the Society shall make such Rules for its own good
governance and the conduct of its members as it may
from time to time think fit;

4. that the Society shall have power in its corporate name
to acquire, hold and dispose of property and funds
and shall to this end comply with Ordinances of the
Government of Hong Kong;

5. that the Society shall invite and have as its Patron a
person of eminence in colony.

1. JTMallorie 15. W Elder Levie
2. JSHirst 16. J C Charter

3. DGFarrow 17. A M JWright
4. RJPhillips 18. J B Aitken

5. Faitfone Wong 19. TCYuen

6.  WWCShewan 20. Wm Sing

7. Pak CKwong 21. HS Luke

8. Stanley Kwok 22. William Ling
9. TS CFeltham 23. Bjorn Nedberg
10. GGDjou 24. G Hollmann
11. Koon Hing Cheang  25. W G Gregory
12. A JBrandt 26. GDSu

13. AV Alvares 27. David P Crease
14. Patricia Mayne

Subscribed by the Foundation Members at the Second
Inaugural Meeting of the Society on 3rd September, 1956

Y BN EES 2 AT IRAIT1956F9838EE » 2l
WM —@EE - DUREERMAVEESE - ShAIB2 1079
BRI B - RPIFELERBER @ RiE GLEEB)
R [SBREMAE) UATEE [R8) ) HERALS
g - RERE) - RERE MI=IE ¢

— NBHBE  KESE - WERBE

SEMEW

m

CBEXEEE KPP

‘ﬂ]]U

— BUEReEENE - BEZAB—IER - moEg
& UREDECEBENSEEM:

NBRHNESHERBEEE REEZENEXTE
B R

—

ﬁi&%%?ﬁﬁf@&ﬁﬁ

h - PFRERMEBIBIMALTDIASEIA -

1. JTMallorie 15. W Elder Levie
2. JSHirst 16. J C Charter

3. DG Farrow 17. A M JWright
4. RJPhillips 18. J B Aitken

5. Faitfone Wong 19. TCYuen

6.  WWCShewan 20. Wm Sing

7. PakCKwong 21. HS Luke

8. Stanley Kwok 22. William Ling
9. TSCFeltham 23. Bjorn Nedberg
10. GGDjou 24. G Hollmann
11. Koon Hing Cheang 25. W G Gregory
12, AJBrandt 26. GDSu

13. AV Alvares 27. David P Crease
14.  Patricia Mayne

RIS 2 EAE1956FIH3BE2RNSH BB HESR -
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* Historical Note
FESPEDNSS

Formation

On 3rd September, 1956, 27 architects gathered and formed
a Society "for the general advancement of Civil Architecture
and for promoting and facilitating the acquirement of the
knowledge of the various Arts and Sciences.” Thus The
Hong Kong Society of Architects was formed. On 7th May,
1957, the first amendments were made, to stand for over
two and a half years. During this period the membership of
the Society increased by 50% and recognition as an Allied
Society was given by Royal Institute of British Architects. In
accord with this growth further amendments were made
to come into effect on 3rd November, 1959. By the end of
1962, the Society expanded to a membership seven times
as large as that first body of foundation members.

The changes of name from Society to the Institute was
effected in 1972 after a great deal of preparatory work, and
has initiated a new phase of activity in the Institute’s affairs.
Members will use the professional affix — Architect HKIA
and describe themselves as Member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Architects. Associates will describe themselves
as Associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects in full.
No abbreviation of this is permitted.

Purpose

The two main purposes of the Institute are to continue
to raise both the standard of architecture in Hong Kong
and the standard of professional services offered by its
members.

Code of Professional Conduct

In addition to the responsibilities of architects as
professionals under law, members of the institute are
governed by a Code of Professional Conduct. This Code
aims to provide the standard of professional conduct and
self-discipline required of the members of the Institute in
the interest the general public.

Discipline

A member whose conduct is found to be in contravention
of the Code or dishonouring the principle of the Code is
liable to reprimand, suspension or expulsion. This ensures
that the public receives from HKIA members only the
highest standard of professional service.

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2009
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Historical Note

RESPENEE

Service to the Public

The Institute also serves the public by applying the
collective expertise of its members in an advisory role to
government and to the building industry. Today, HKIA is
represented in numerous consultative or advisory bodies
ranging from a working group which counsels the drafting
of new building and planning legislation to a committee
which formulates standard contracts for use in the building
industry.

Architectural Education

In the field of education, the Institute works closely with the
two Universities, namely, the University of Hong Kong and
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and offers courses and
counsel in professional practice and practical experience in
architecture.

Professional Qualification

Every year, candidates aspiring to the professional
qualification of Architect sit a professional examination held
by the Institute. Successful candidates receive recognition
not only from professional bodies in Hong Kong but also in
UK, Australia, Canada, USA and other countries.

International Participation

In recent years, the Institute takes Hong Kong to the fore in
international circles through its active participation in the
International Union of Architects (UIA), the Commonwealth
Association of Architects (CAA), and the Architects Regional
Council of Asia (ARCASIA).

Organization

Today, The Hong Kong Institute of Architects has around
150 Fellows, more than 2300 full members and over 400
associate members and graduate members. The Institute is
governed by a Council consisting of a President, two Vice-
Presidents, an Honorary Secretary, an Honorary Treasurer,
eight Ordinary Members of the Council, the Immediate
Past President (ex-officio member) and the Chairmen of the
Boards. The Boards, appointed by the Council, are formed
to deal with specific areas in the objectives of the Institute.
They are the Board of Educational Affairs, Board of External
Affairs, Board of Internal Affairs, Board of Local Affairs, Board
of Practices and Board of Mainland Affairs. These Boards in
turn appoint Committees to deal with matters within the
area of responsibility of the Boards.

ARFs L

HRIYER - EEEESNERFXAE - BSNOBGFOEE
FITHBIRT - Didieitsr - 5rl > SEERRMBE LS
BERRBHERNIIBRRSHE -

REEER S

ERBEHE - ABBEMAAS - BEABNEEDIA
DEEER - ARESXERBNEDRURENNE - 28
MEBEERSHOARREHE  WETEEESRE

=7
o °

HXER

8 BEALTERBSTHNSEEH MR ENEE
&1 - BOERECRENSLEBTEESERR - 1T
WIRE - 8 - EART - AR

BRIHD -

2 EREIPRAA S

RRESBDEEERES INEEN ARSI T PBRSE
BUPRRILEN R (UIA) « BB TEENIRE (CAA) FTIE
BENHS (ARCASIA)SHER; -

HRr28

Bl - ABSHBKNS0UERDSE + #V2,3003ERSE
RBBAZ MRS ENEXLEZE - BFZH—EEFES
7% - BEEZONECES R MUSRK  WER - UH
R /N\IEHEE - LESK (EREE) NSHPIER -
BPIBEESEDORIL - HASHTEERDBNITRE
HEOBF - CMIRBHEEHL - BISHL - ABEEH
B0~ AEFEEL « NESHBAOAMSHED - SEPTE T
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Historical Note
FESPEDNSS

Past Presidents of HKIA
1956  GDSu
1957  GDSu

1958 A M JWright

1959 H G F Robinson
1960 W Szeto

1961 W G Gregory

1962 G Chadwick Dovey
1963 G Chadwick Dovey
1964 WK Lee

1965 H Cedric Astbury
1966 T L Kwok

1967 Alan Fitch

1968 Alfred V J Alvares
1969 lan James Campbell
1970 Leslie Chao Ouyang
1971 Jon A Prescott

1972 Jon A Prescott

1973 Jackson C SWong
1974 Jackson C S Wong
1975 Andrew Lee King Fun
1976 Andrew Lee King Fun
1977 William W T Hsu
1978 William W T Hsu
1979 Lawrence KY Lo
1980 Lawrence KY Lo
1981 Ronald CY Poon
1982 Ronald CY Poon
1983 Edward ST Ho

1984 Edward ST Ho

1985 Edwin Wong

1986 Edwin Wong

1987 James H Kinoshita
1988 James H Kinoshita
1989 Christopher Haffner
1990 Christopher Haffner
1991 Stephen S C Poon
1992 Stephen S C Poon
1993 Dennis W K Lau
1994 Dennis WK Lau
1995 W N Chung

1996 W N Chung

1997 Tao Ho

1998 Tao Ho

1999 Barry F. Will

2000 Barry F. Will

2001 Patrick S S Lau

2002 Patrick S S Lau

2003 John P L Wong
2004 Edward Shen

2005 Bernard VW F Lim
2006 Bernard VW F Lim
2007 RonaldY C Lu

2008 RonaldY C Lu
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1957 FmHE
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1959 H G F Robinson
1960  TfESR

1961 W G Gregory

1962 G Chadwick Dovery
1963 G Chadwick Dovery
1964 WK Lee

1965 H Cedric Astbury
1966 hIE

1967 Alan Fitch

1968 Alfred V J Alvares
1969 lan James Campbell
1970 BUE68

1971 ==
1972 BB8
1973 EBE
1974  E24E

1975 =282

1976 =22

1977 HAE
1978 mAUEE
1979 @R
1980  @BNRE
1981 BIERZE
1982  BIHZE
1983  {@&EK
1984  {@EK

1985  EZERE
1986  EEE
1987  ANTF—
1988  ANF—

1989  EHKig
1990 B
1991 TR
1002 EARE
1993  BI¥E
1994  BIXKE
1095  BIEAH
1996  IEIERD

1997 3 38
1998 {3 ¥
1999  EigA!
2000  2iTF/
2001 2IF W
2002 BB
2003  FEH

2004 YR
2005  ME=Z
2006 ME=E
2007 ST
2008 ST
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The First Quarterly General Meeting 2009
Honorary Secretary Report - 26 March 2009

2009FF —ZERXFEWERRS - 20095385268

Board of Practices (BP)

1 Corporate Membership
Renewal was completed for 130 Corporate Members for 2009.

2 Directory of Architectural Practices 2009
Over 100 Corporate Members made submission for the Directory of
Architectural Practices 2009, which will be ready for release in May 2009.

3  Practices Survey 2009
e Salary Survey 2009 amongst Corporate Members on 23 February was
being conducted

e Survey result will be available in April 2009.

4  Practice Issues Committee
e A proposal on regular review and adjustment of project limit eligible to
bid for AACSB 1 & 2 Architectural Consultants was prepared by the
Committee. The proposal addressed that it was necessary to review the
project limit of Band 2 so as to fully reflect the fluctuation in Tender Price BC Annual General Meeting -
Index. The proposal was sent to Arch SD in late February for their o0 ”
consideration.

HEBHE

1 88
130E AT BE2009F SREEHTIBR °

2 200932 EENEFHEATSM
1002 NI EEBFE2009BFREMSHASM - BMIEI2009F58
HAR o

3  2009EHBHFHERE
o HWATOSEETIEFINEESI2E23855 -
o FHEBERIGIR2009F4B A -
4 BN/ EKESHEES
s FECSEFITHEEREHEUHESESSBUEZEPEMERE_HEN
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= o
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e Forum: Glass as Structure - -

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2009

Legal & Finance Committee
Representatives from the Committee would be meeting with Marsh, the
appointed insurance broker of the HKIA Professional Indemnity Insurance
Scheme. The proposal would be circulated to Corporate Members for
expression of interest once ready.

Membership Committee

Following the adoption by Council, a “List of HKIA Registered Practices’,
which includes both “Corporate Membership” and Sole Proprietors/
Partnership, will be in place in April 2009.

Contract and Dispute Resolution Committee

The Committee would review some closed disciplinary cases to bring
out practice issues for avoidance of possible accusation against architects.
This would help Corporate Members to prevent similar case in the future
and be more cautious in handling some particular architectural works.

EERUBREES
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Board of Local Affairs (BLA)

1 Nominations (Reported by President)
e Mr FU Chin Shing Ivan was nominated to Vocational Training Council to
serve on the Building and Civil Engineering Training Board.

e MrWONG King Lau Geoffrey was referred to the Office of Clerk of Board
of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance) for consideration of appointment
by Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury to serve as member
of Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance).

e Mr Franklin YU, Mr Alexander LUSH and Mr TAM Wai Lam William were
nominated, and Mr NG Wing Shun Vincent and Mr CHU Hoi Shan Paul
were re-nominated to represent in Hong Kong Urban Design Alliance for
the term of 20009.

e Mr TSENG Yen Wei William was nominated to Buildings Department to
serve on the Steering Committee for Consultancy Study on the Building
Design Guidelines for Adaptive Re-use of Heritage Buildings.

2 Submission of Written Views / Responses to Local Affairs

The Institute delivered views to the Government on the following subjects :

e A press release on the forthcoming public engagement on measures to
foster a quality and sustainable built environment was issued on 23
January 2009.

A=
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e The Institute delivered a presentation on public facilities in private
developments at the meeting of Panel on Development of the Legislative
Council held on 16 February 2009. The position paper was also
submitted to the LegCo for record.

e A press release on 2009-2010 HKSARG Budget was issued on 25
February 2009.

e Further to the submission of written views on urban design for the new
Central harbourfront in July 2008, the Institute presented the views on
the same subject in the public consolidation forum conducted by
Harbourfront Enhancement Committee on 28 February 2009.

3 Other Events

¢ Open International Ideas Competition for Noise Barrier /
Enclosure Design
The Competition was organized by Highways Department and co-
organized, inter alia, by HKIA. It was launched on 6 January 2009 and
registrations closed on 20 February 2009. Announcement of results was
scheduled for April 2009.

¢ North Point Harbour Conceptual Design Competition
The Competition was organized by Eastern District Council and co-
organized, inter alia, by HKIA. The competition was launched on 24
February 2009 and registrations and submission of entries to close on 10
March 2009 and 15 April 2009 respectively.

* 2009F2R16BHEIIASERSHEESER L 22 [EALABER
BRERHAREE] ERER -
s 120 e 2009F2F32585 [2009-2010FEESERBENVERERS ] &R
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Envisioning Days on Former Central School

HKIA supported the Central and Western District Council for the project
of “Envisioning Days on Former Central School” held on 21, 22, 28
February and 1 March 2009. Talks and workshops, guided tours, artifact
display, art quarters by artists and exhibition by galleries were held
during the period. The Institute led the organization of a public event in
rebuilding parts of the former Central School aiming at promoting and
educating the public on heritage conservation.

PGBC Technical Seminar on The Next Generation and

LEED Refurbishment

Professional Green Building Council held a technical seminar on The Next
Generation and LEED Refurbishment on 9 March 2009. Mr Simon Wild,
Managing Director Cundall Asia Pacific, and Mr Julian Bott, Principal
Cundall Hong Kong, were invited to speak in the seminar. The
presentation provided an overview of sustainable building design over
the last decade and looked at where the future of sustainable building
could go beyond energy efficiency & building regulation and moved to
a model of long term sustainability. A case study on the refurbishment of
a vacant building into a low energy green office building in Shenzhen
was shared in the seminar.

Informal Discussion Session with Planning Department on Building
Height Restrictions

An informal discussion session with Planning Department was held on
10 March 2009 to have a sharing of views on building height restrictions
imposed by Outline Zoning Plan amendments recently. Members shared
their concerns on the deficiency of such restriction in controlling the
building bulk.
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Board of Educational Affairs (BEdA)

1 Education & Careers Expo 2009 on 19-22 February
¢ Thanks to the concerted efforts of a team of dedicated young members,
the Institute staged a double booth at the Expo.

e Special thanks to Dennis Lau & Ng Chun Man Architects & Engineers (H.K)
Limited being the event sponsor.

e As a part of the Career Seminar Series of the Expo, Council member
Mr. Choi Kam Lung Franky delivered a talk on "Architectural Studies in
Hong Kong”on 21 February.

2  Professional Assessment 2008
Results of written papers were released on 27 February and Paper 9
Professional Interview shall be held on 28 March. 137 candidates are eligible
for taking Paper 9.

Passing rate for each written paper was as follows:

Paper 1 (Statutory Controls in Building Works) 52.52%
Paper 2 (Building Contracts, Professional Practice, 48.79%
Professional Conduct, Conditions of Agreement &
Scale of Charges)
Paper 3 (Building Structures) 57.14%
Paper4 (Building Services & Environmental Controls) 48.33%
Paper5 (Building Materials & Technology) 61.54%
Paper 6  (Site Design) 65.38%
Paper 7  (Building Design, Construction 59.44%
Details & Documentation)
Paper 8 (Case Study) 82.83%
Written Papers Overall Passing Rate 36.01%
HABESHH
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3  Education Development & Accreditation Committee
Mr. Choi Chee-cheong, former Secretary-General of Hong Kong Examination
Assessment Authority, was commissioned to conduct a comparative
research study for reviewing HKIA/ARB Accreditation System as an extension
of his research study for the Institute on Enhancement of HKIA/ARB
Professional Assessment.

4  Membership Admission Committee
¢ The Council approved to expand the list of programmes recognized by
Council for Student Membership to include Bachelor of Architecture
(Hons) offered by Chu Hai College. Please visit www.hkia.net for the full
list.

¢ In order to improve the current system, annual renewal of Student
Membership will be required for each Student Member at the end of
each year starting from 2008.

5 Continuing Professional Development Committee
e (CPD Site Visits to HKYWCA Conference Centre and Guesthouse and
Discovery College in Lantau on 17 January.

e (CPD Supplier Series by Knauf USG Systems on 25 February.
e CPD Supplier Series by C3S Far East Ltd on 26 February.

e CPD Seminar on Urban Transformation of Central District as a Place of
Living, 1843-2008 on 13 March.

s = Meeting with Architectural Students"
3 %ﬂ%éé@&;?%xg\g e U - ) Association, HKUSU ;
BRESRHSEIEBEARIMBRIIMNERZREE/E REFATHIEE (27/02/2009)
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Board of Mainland Affairs (BMA)

1 Liaison groups
e 3 Liaison Groups were set up to provide a platform for HKIA members
working or residing in the mainland for exchanges and gathering.

e The 3 groups are namely Eastern China Liaison Group, Southern China
Liaison Group, and Northern China Liaison Group.

e The 4th group (for Western China) has been deferred due to limited
number of members over vast territories and provisionally covered by
the 5.12 Hong Kong Architects has been reconstruction Taskforce.

2 Mutual Recognition - Professional Advancement
e Extension of CEPA was being sought, continually, including Comparative
study — Roles of Architects in Hong Kong and the Mainland

e The University of Hong Kong and Tsinghua University, both executing
institutes, are at the final stage of analysis of the completed
questionnaires and the drafting of the final report.

3 2009 Mainland and Hong Kong Construction Industry Forum
e The forum is jointly organized by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-
Rural Development and the Development Bureau of the HKSAR.

e This year's forum shall be held on 8-10 April 2009, in Chengdu, Sichuan.
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e Theme of the forum is “Sustainable Urban Form: From Disaster Risk
Reduction and Prevention to Quality Construction”.

e The forum is composed of a whole day forum in which experts from the
Mainland and Hong Kong share their experience and vision in the
topics under the main theme, and a study mission to severely stricken
areas with reconstruction projects supported by the HKSAR.

e The Institute is in great support to the forum. Members helping the
Sichuan reconstruction works were encouraged to attend the forum.

4. Sichuan Earthquake Relief
e The Institute is currently working closely with the Development Bureau
of the HKSAR on the Sichuan reconstruction projects.

¢ Volunteers are divided into 4 sub-groups according to the building type
of the projects, namely hospital, school, social welfare facility and Wolong
Natural Reserve.

5. Council’s Courtesy Visit to Beijing
e Council shall pay a courtesy visit to The Ministry of Housing and Urban-
Rural Development and various authorities on 29 — 31 March 2009.

¢ The delegation consists of over 20 members, including 2 officials from
the PRC People’s Central Government’s Liaison Office in the HKSAR, is led
by President Anna Kwong and Hon. Prof. Patrick Lau.

e Members in Beijing are invited to join a dinner with the delegation in the
evening of 29 March 2009.

o WBEFER [TRHEMNTENS : B RBES S ERMERERE] -

s REBELERE—RNEMNSIE BRANMREBEZEXERMBEBLEN
SEDEERAER - RIBERERBEVEEZEXZAMNEHER -

s FERNZFWE  WEASRD)ERTFNSESHE
4. REN)IMERLESE
s ZFTMEBRERESEN)|ERBXLRBSIE -

s BERNERBBNESH  LHFLISSOMANE - DAIRER - B8
T SR REAREERRER -

Welcoming Event for Prospec
o HKIA Members
5. BEZHRE R B S EEE)

o BEEER2009F3829-31 FEHEEFIMANERE R EMHE - (12/05/2009)

o HEIWEEER  BIFEWMZEERBH20DANRNKEBERFED © —BRIENE
BML BB SE -

o REBEE2009F3IF29F BN REEHTIRE -

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2009

29



30

Honorary Secretary’s Quarterly Report 2009.
zoogﬁgﬁﬁﬁmgﬁégﬁ%

Board of External Affairs (BExA)

1 Academic Exchange Committee
¢ In light of the positive feedback from students joining the Fontainbleau
Exchange Programme in Paris last year, the Committee determined
| to participate in the programme this year. Invitations were extended to
-,‘ eligible students, i.e. BAAS-3 and MArch 1 from HKU and CUHK.

e Deadline for application of Fontainbleau Exchange Programme is 1st
April 2009 and the selection of students will take place in end March by

the Committee.
ar Urban Transformation
rict as a Place of lemg

2 CAA/ARCASIA Committee
e Vice Chairman of ARCAISA Zone C, Mr. Batjav Batkhuyag visited HKIA
on 24 February 2009 and met with President. He reported about
progress of the ARCAISA Forum in Mongolia scheduled for August 2009.

e HKIA will try to secure speaking opportunities at the ARCASIA Forum.

3  Community Development Committee
e Community Development Committee (CDC), which was originally under
the purview of BLA, had been re-shuffled to BExA from 2009 onwards.

e Apart from participating in programme initiated by the Government/
District Council/NGOs, the Committee would be more proactive to
promote architecture by close liaison with local art groups/organizations.
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Board of Internal Affairs (BIA)

1 Annual Awards Committee
e 78 submissions were received this year. The jury process was successfully
completed in mid January 2009.

e The official result announcement of the Annual Awards 2008 will be
made at the Press Conference on 4 May 2009 at HKIA Premises.

e The exhibition will be held from 8-12 May 2009 at Park Court, Pacific
Place.

Mrs Carrie Lam, JP, Secretary for Development will be the officiating guest at ) g Housing Department
the Award Presentation and Opening Ceremony at 7:00pm. il

The Annual Awards 2008 Special Issue will be ready in early May for
members' collection at HKIA Premises.

2 Young Architects’ Committee
e The award will be presented to Ms CHIU Hang Mei, winner of Young
Architect's Award 2008 at the HKIA Annual Awards 2008 Award
Presentation & Exhibition Opening Ceremony on Friday evening, 8 May
2009.

e Young Architects’ Project Fund 2009 was launched in mid February. The
closing date for submission is 28 March 2009.

e Cross Professional mingling party was successfully held on 6 March 2009

at Pi Club.
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3  Student & Graduate Members’ Committee
Welcoming Event for Professional Assessment Candidate took place on 12
,i.#. e g 4 March 2009 at HKIA Premises.
w‘ﬂ Hslitule of Architec
T = 4  100-Year of Architecture in Hong Kong Committee
e The first “Disappearing Hong Kong” Photo trip 2009 will be scheduled on
28 March 2009 (Sat) at Sheung Shiu & Fanling. For registration, please
visit www.hkia.net.

e HKIA Blank Card with winning photos was launched in January. A set of
16 HKIA cards is sold at HK$240. For sample cards, please see the
promotion flyer on HKIA e-newsletter and at the premises.

5 Annual Dinner Committee
e HKIA Annual Dinner 2009 will be held on Saturday, 21 November at
Hong Kong Football Club.

Special Project - Response Exhibition of the 11th
International Architecture Exhibition of Venice Biennale
Hong Kong Exhibition

1 Opening Ceremony
The Opening Ceremony of the Response Exhibition took place on 28
February 2009, Saturday, at 2:30pm at Hong Kong Heritage Discovery Centre,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon. Mrs. Rita Lau, JP, Secretary for Commence and
Economic Development, was the Guest of Honour to officiate at the
ceremony.

3 BESEFLESFHEE
e 2009 3B 12BER S REXRIFESE LM TEUDNES, -

4 é%@ﬁ%%ﬂg%ﬁ
2009FB—E [EENEB) B PR20098 3328 B FK Ry sass

17 » IRBFABwWww.hkia.net o

o R NBENSE] BEHBEBERRE REMNSERENSSINREBI
188 - —E163:69 u%ni%amo%ﬁ% PRI usuiﬁzs %2@‘5%
SEFRINNNSEEEZTIIBZSSE

5 BErEsLEE
o HBREEIBZ2000FFMENR11B21BEBESBRIRELLTI
17 -

RHREB-E+—EREH/ BEERE-580RE

1 HER
OERIR2009F2F28B 28 /N N2 : 300 ESBNRIDIBEE XWIRA
BEER(T - BEREERECERNESBRERER T BELTIEEE -

32 The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2009



HonorarySecretarysQ terly Report200,9' J—— |
2009&?%%%%}%%&? e (L g

.‘I".-' A # ';_,z
£t o
U ,-'?’}vdi
- S A o
N

2  Exhibition Period

e Date: 28 February 2009 - 29 April 2009

¢ Venue: Thematic Exhibition Gallery, Hong Kong Heritage Discovery
Centre, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

¢ Exhibition Opening Hours:
Mondays to Saturdays (except Thursdays): 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
Sundays and Public Holidays: 10:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.
Closed on Thursdays (except Public Holidays)

e Free Admission

3 Forum
e Date: 18 April 2009 (Saturday)
e Venue: Lecture Hall, Hong Kong Heritage Discovery Centre, Kowloon
Park, Haiphong Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
e Speakers:
- Mr. Rocco Yim, FHKIA, Member of the Steering Committee of the
Hong Kong Exhibition at the 11th International Architecture
Exhibition, Venice
- Mr.Chan Koon Chung, Writer and cultural critic.
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Dominic LAM, HKIA
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Honorary Secretary
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The Second Quarterly General Meeting 2009

Honorary Secretary Report

22 June 2009

2009FE _FERFWERRS
200968228

Board of Practices (BP)

Practices Survey 2009
46 responses were received for the Practices Survey 2009. The survey result
was sent to respondents in May 2009.

Proposed HKIA Accredited List of Practices

After a series of consultation through survey, forum and various meetings,
because of the time frame for the hyperlink to ArchSD Website by June
2009, the Board of Practices proposed and the Council endorsed that a
full list of Registered Practices currently kept in HKIA to be posted on the
HKIA website and be hyperlinked to the ArchSD website. The board will
continue to review, amend and uphold the required standard of the“List"
The proposal has been presented to ArchSD.

Business Promotion Committee

The Institute will look into simplified Chinese version in HKIA Website and
publications such as SPARK or HKIA Directory, which will be a more
effective mean to promote our Practices and Members in Mainland China.

H<BHE
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4 Legal & Finance Committee
The Committee is seeking expression of interest from our Corporate
Members to join the group professional indemnity insurance (PIl) and the
committee is actively negotiating with the insurance company to get the
policy details settled.

5 Practice Issues Committee
The committee is reviewing the client/ architect agreement and strives to
amend/ rewrite it.

6 Contract & Dispute Resolution Committee
The committee is now reviewing all the past cases in 2000-2008 complaints
against our members and to advise our members on area and/or aspects
which shall take extra cautions against possible complaint and area of
improvement of the current disciplinary proceedings. Also, a series of CPD
on China law, Standard form of building contract, as well as Mainland
practice would be organized.

4  FKEBRRUBEEE Meeting with Prof John Beddington,
SESN/N\TRSLRELE L RRS 8 NBIETSH - WRRRA ST overnment Chief Scientific Adviser:
TEROVIHERI BB R E R -

5 BNAEKEREHESD
ZESIEARS [REMNEZFTASKH] - WBNREAS ERTE °

6 RBESHNERBAFRUNEHEES
ZE 2L ¥2000-2008FHHF L S SELHVCRENE TR - WEHHEE
ERBAREEPRATENEEIBELEIRER - EESHET T —RIE
BPEAR - BESKIRELR RENEMITZ RN FBATBVIEED ARV
BEXEEHE -
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2009FEBBWEESERE

Board of Local Affairs (BLA)

1 Nominations
e MrTSANG Man Biu was nominated to Buildings Department to serve on
the Working Group for the Review of the Code of Practice for Site
Supervision.

e Mr CHAN Chiu Ming was nominated to Construction Industry Council to
sit on the Working Group on Adhesion Technology for External Wall Tiles.

e Mr HO Cham was nominated to Fire Services Department to sit on the
Working Group on Working Group on the Review of Registration Scheme
for Fire Service Installation Contractors.

2 Submission of Written Views / Responses to Local Affairs
e Consultancy Study on Design Guidelines for Adaptive Reuse of Heritage
Buildings
- A briefing session cum consultation forum for HKIA members on the
consultancy study Design Guidelines for Adaptive Reuse of Heritage
Buildings was held on 25 March 2009. The consultant of Buildings
Department gave a briefing of the study and members present
delivered their comments on the scope of the proposed design
guidelines.

e Public Engagement on Building Design to Foster a Quality and
Sustainable Built Environment
- The Council for Sustainable Development (CSD) had launched a
public engagement exercise on 20 June 2009. HKIA accepted the
invitation of CSD to be the supporting organization of the public
engagement exercise. A members’ opinion survey for the
consultation was conducted in May 2009. The taskforce set up under
BLA would keep following up the subject.

A EH5EDR

1 BRI
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3 Events
e Open International Ideas Competition for Noise Barrier / Enclosure

Design

- The Competition was organized by Highways Department and co-
organized, inter alia, by HKIA. Results of the competition were
announced in the prize presentation ceremony held on 27 April 2009.
A series of exhibition was held between 27 April and 8 June 2009.
Results were available at competition website at :
http://www.noisebarrier-competition.nk/eng/comResult.htm

e |deas Competition for Waterfront Development at Ex-North Point Estate
Site
- The Competition was organized by Eastern District Council and co-
organized, inter alia, by HKIA.

- Results were announced in the prize presentation ceremony held on
23 May 20009.

¢ |deas Competition for the Development of a Piazza in Tsim Sha Tsui
- The two-stage competition was co-organized by Tourism Commission
and Architectural Services Department, and sponsored by HKIA. It
was launched on 13 May 2009 and submission of stage one closed

Lunch Meeting
on 17 June 2009. 4/2009)

3 BB
o [RERBERESERLRRFSITLE
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http://www.noisebarrier-competition.nk/eng/comResult.htm
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"Sustainable Urban Form:
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e Courtesy Visit of Construction Industry Council to HKIA
- CIC placed a courtesy visit to HKIA on 5 May 2009. CIC gave a short
briefing on its formation, functions and structures. HKIA was invited
to share our views on the needs and long-term strategic issues of
local construction industry.

¢ Heritage Walk to Holy Spirit Seminary and Haw Par Mansion
- Heritage and Conservation Committee held a heritage walk to Holy
Spirit Seminary at Aberdeen and Haw Par Mansion at Tai Hang on
9 May 2009.

e First Seminar of Heritage Seminar Series on Saving Our Global Heritage
- Heritage and Conservation Committee held a CPD seminar on Saving
Our Global Heritage on 20 May 2009. Three speakers from Global
Heritage Fund including Mr Jeff Morgan, Co-founder and Executive
Director, delivered a talk on the recent large-scale destruction of
cultural heritage sites across Asia over the past decades and gave an
outline on the GHF's work in the region.

o RIEXBZIHBSBRRMS
20095358 1E %= ?hﬁé)ﬁ@;@%ﬂigﬁ - BISKBZBHENB
FEWEBERRERE TEREMNPSHZEXZSHRAER
HETT SAOM
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REBLSHEEHBEMELT - RASATNBIFERSIRIZE -
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2009F5F20B MR X REEZSSEM T HBEXEBCRELRE
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ARBITES Jeff Morganfe A2k T HDMBE+F LBINBE ARER
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I HKIA Annual Awards 2008 Press Confere
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(04/05/2009)
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Board of Educational Affairs (BEdA)

1 Reinforcement of Mandatory CPD
To reinforce the mandatory CPD, CPD Declaration Form submission will tie
in with the renewal of HKIA membership. A consultation forum will be held
in August to solicit members'views on this tightening measure.

2 Professional Assessment 2008 — Professional Interview
¢ Professional Interview was held on 28 March 2009

e Of the 137 candidates who sat the Professional Interview, 103 candidates ,
passed the professional assessment, representing a passing rate of 75.2%. ducation Futures Ne[x]t
ing Environments
3 Professional Assessment 2009
 Registration is open from now until 17 July 2009.

e Design Papers Adviser Session was organized on 25 May 2009 with the
aim to allow the advisers an update understanding of the Design Papers
and thus a better support to their advisees in preparing for the coming
Professional Assessment.

e The 27 sessions of Lecture & Seminar Series shall be held from early June
to September.

e Paper 8 Case Study shall be in progress as soon as registration closes.

e Written Papers shall be held during the 2nd and 3rd weeks of December.

N A
nformal Lunch with Mr. Cho Yan Chiu

HEEHED " (06/05/2009)
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Research on HKIA Scaling New Heights
e Mr. Choi Chee Cheong presented interim research findings to research
supervising panel on 21 April and 9 June 2009.

¢ The findings of the research and the position of the Institute will submit
to Council for endorsement.

Mutual Recognition of Accreditation Systems with AACA

HKIA is requesting Architects Accreditation Council of Australia (AACA) for
joining National Visiting Panel (NVP) to observe AACA’s NVP process in
accrediting local schools in Australia prior to signing the Agreement of
Mutual Recognition of Accreditation Systems with AACA.

HKIA Student Medal
A working group was set up to review the current selection process and
criteria for HKIA Student Medal

Continuing Professional Development Committee
* Members who have not submitted their CPD Declaration Form for 2008
are urged to return their forms as soon as possible.

* Recent CPD events:
1. AType and its Variations — A study on Hong Kong’s Police Housing in
the 1950-60s by Gu Daging on 22 April

2. Procedures for Time and Cost Claims in the New Standard Form of
Building Contract, Private Edition, 2005 by Y. Ling Lam on 27 April

SRS SR
o SWSTLEDBIR2009F 45218 R6FB ORHEHRE/) IR T HRETE
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s HRARRBSNIIGRSERIESZES -
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3. Education Futures Forum Ne[x]t Generation Learning Environments
by Dr. Henn Fisher on 6 May

4. CPD Site Visit to Former Marine Police Headquarters on 23 May

5. Seminar Series on Contract & Condition 2005 -
a. An Overview of the Standard Form of Building Contract 2005
Edition by Bernard Wu on 22 May

b. Detailed Discussion on the Standard Form of Building Contract
2005 Edition by Dr. James Lee on 12 June

¢. Extension of Time & Claims for Loss of Expenses by Prof. Edwin
Chanon 17 July

8 Higher Education Review 2010
e University Grants Committee invited views from the Institute on the
review of the higher education system in Hong Kong. A task group was
set up on the issue.

e We have agreed with other building professional institutes to request
for deferment of the deadline for comment submission in order to have
adequate time to collect views from members.

3. PI<KARHBEEHE < T —2BIRE>HRE * BHenn FisherfB L
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inar Series : Saving Our

CPD Seminar Series on Contract Conditions
2005 - An Overview of the Standard form of
Building Contract 2005 Edition
(22/05/2009)
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Board of Mainland Affairs (BMA)

1 CEPA - Professional qualifications
Professional architectural qualification
e Attempt will be made on a fresh round of mutual recognition of
professional architectural qualification, if possible.

e For mutually recognized candidates, attempt will be made to get them
registered in Hong Kong and Mainland via the on-going research project
on Comparison on Job scopes and Responsibilities of Architects in Hong
Kong and Mainland.

PRC Construction Project Manager Qualification

e The first stage registration of the PRC Construction Project Manager
Qualification special assessment, to be organized by the Ministry of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development and the China Association of
Engineering Consultants for Hong Kong architects, was open for HKIA
members'registration from May 2009.

¢ A briefing forum on the qualification and special assessment was held
on 8 June 2009.

¢ The Institute aims to have the special assessment exercise by the end of
2009.

RS F5EL

1 CEPA - S¥E1R
EEEEEER
o BRREFMFEH —RNBEEMES TR °
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2 Co-operation agreement with the Department of Housing and
Urban-rural Development of Hebei Province, PRC
e The Institute signed a co-operation agreement with the Department of
Housing and Urban-rural Development of Hebei Province, PRC.

e This aims to enhance collaboration between Hebei Province and HKIA
on Hebei development. It is also hoped to introduce HK expertise into
Hebei's architectural profession.

e A study tour to Hebei shall be held in September 2009. Registered
Practices are invited to participate in the tour.

3 Sichuan Earthquake Relief
e Assistance in Sichuan reconstruction projects are financially funded by
the HKSAR:
The Institute is currently working closely with the Development
Bureau of the HKSAR on the Sichuan reconstruction projects.

- Volunteers assist in the feasibility study of the more than 100 hospital,
school, social welfare facility & Wolong natural reserve reconstruction
projects.

- Mr. Thomas Chow, Mr. Edward Tong and Mr. Martin Tam attended 3
Expert Panel Meetings in Chengdu to deliberate the reconstruction
projects with the Sichuan authorities. There are about 40 members
are helping to review the reports on the above projects.

- The Institute needs more volunteers to support the works and good
name of the Institute.
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Technical Tour to Japan on post-quake redevelopment

2009 International Dra'gon Boat Regatta
2000F EUFREEFILE

(30/05/2009)

volunteers made a technical trip the Japan with HKIP members from
23-26 April 2009 on self-financing basis.

the group studied the local post-quake redevelopment, also the
planning and design of schools with disaster refuge and relief
facilities.

an in-depth debriefing session were held on 26 May to share with
HKIA & HKIP members.

4 HKSAR Chief Secretary’s trip to Guangzhou & Foshan & forum
in Shenzhen
e HKSAR Chief Secretary’s trip to Guangzhou & Foshan:

the trip was held from 23-24 April 2009.

the Institute was represented by Ms. Anna Kwong, President, Mr.
Ivan Ho, Chairman of the Board of Practices, Mr. Thomas Chow & Mr.
Ben Yeung, Convenors of the Southern China Liaison Group.

the delegation, sized over 100 members, met officials of the
Guangdong Province, Guangzhou & Foshan, also visited the IT
industries in Nan-shan district and Foshan city.
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e HKSAR Chief Secretary’s forum in Shenzhen:
- the forum was held on 2 June 2009.

- the Institute was represented by Ms. Anna Kwong, President, Mr.
Martin Tam Chairman of the BMA, and Mr. Edward Shen, Past
President cum Advisor of the BMA.

- Shenzhen officials attended the forum to exchange with participants.

- In the forum, issues on professional services, opening up the
domestic market and Hong Kong enterprises on the Mainland were

discussed.
ies on Contract Conditions
orm of Building Contract
Board of External Affairs (BExA) e Fo

1 Academic Exchange Committee
Two students from CUHK and HKU were confirmed by Fontainebleau School
regarding the application to the Architecture Summer Session from July 2 to
August 6 for five week program at Paris, France.

2 Overseas Excursion Committee
The Committee proposed to organize some short trips for members
participation. It is suggested to pay visit to multiple cities in the Mainland.
Comments/ suggestions from members are welcome.

'
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3 UIA Committee/ UIA Regions IV Work Programme “Architecture
for All” Committee
The Work Plan 2008-2011 Logframe Matrix was submitted to UIA SG.

4. Community Development Committee
The Roundtable Community Mentorship Programme is launched on May
2009 and HKIA members are invited to participate as mentors.

5. CAA/ARCASIA Committee
The feasibility of hosting ARCASIA in Hong Kong 2012 is being studied. HKIA
official delegates shall attend the ARCASIA Forum 15 at Mongolia on 17 — 22
August.

Board of Internal Affairs (BIA)

1 Annual Awards Committee
e The HKIA Annual Awards 2008 Presentation and Exhibition Opening
Ceremony was held on 8 May 2009 at Pacific Place with more than
hundred guests attended the ceremony. The event photos are available
in HKIA website.

’

e The Annual Awards 2008 special issues are available for members
collection.

3 BFREEENRESENRE (2 ARSE] T/E/NME
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Certificate Presentation Ceremony 2009¢
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2 Young Architects’ Committee
There was no award to be made for the Young Architects' Project Fund
2009.

3 Welfare & Activities Committee
e Welcoming Party for new members and their families was held on 18
June 2009 at Craigengower Cricket Club.

e Congratulations to our Dragonboat team who has won the Professional
cup champion at International Dragonboat Regatta this year.

e Congratulations also to our Football Team who has participated in the
Joint Professionals’ Football League since April 2009 and has maintained
the best score among 7 professional institutes. For details of the score
record, please visit our website and all the pictures at
http://www.hksla.org/jpfl/mainpage.htm

) p on BEAM Professional
ng

4, 100-Year of Architecture in Hong Kong Committee
The second "Disappearing Hong Kong” Photo trip 2009 at Tai Po Market is
scheduled on Saturday, 25 July 2009.

5.  Annual Dinner Committee
The theme of this year Annual Dinner is sports. It will be held at the Hong
Kong Football Club, Saturday, 21 November 2009. Members are advised to
ourselves fit and to look for the Dinner early.

and Leakage Repair Works
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2009 S REMET BEBERE -

3 Taaﬂ&%@]%,%@
e 2009F6818BIMCFZERARSRAFTSE RER AR TIUHSIRE

s REEMABKESSTESBHRENERETXEEM -

o MiTEEKE - B2009F4R2IMEFREIRME - f£752FFEIREPID
RIERENE - F2BMU MBInEBERIKGCHALESF -
http://www.hksla.org/jpfl/mainpage.htm

4. DEOFREEREZ
2009F7RE258% R NEXIEE | BB RAHBESRT -

5. BFfREEsS"

SERFRENTBEEES - BFRERIR2009F 11E218ESBEIRSE
17 - SETRFEREFEN

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2009 47



Honorary Secretary’s Quarterly Report 2009
2009 EEBENERTERS

6. Media Resources and Publications Committee
HKIA Directory of Architects'Practices 2009 and HKIA Annual Report 2008
are now available for members’ collection at HKIA Premises.

7.  Quality Building Award 2010
¢ The theme of Quality Building Award 2010 is “Quality Transcends through
Time"

¢ Nomination will be launched in July 2009 and submission deadline is 15
January 2010

Special Project : Hong Kong - Shenzhen Bi-city Biennale
of Architecture and Urbanism 2009

1 Steering Committee
The Steering Committee consisting of representatives of the HKIA, the Hong
Kong Institute of Planners (HKIP) and Hong Kong Designers Association
(HKDA) led by co-chairpersons Ms. Alice Yeung and Mr. Alvin Yip was set up
to look after this mega weight event of the institute.

2  Tentative Date of Opening and Exhibition Venue
The official Opening Ceremony was tentatively scheduled for the evening of
4 December 2009 in the West Kowloon Cultural District (WKCD).
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3 Major Sponsor
Home Affairs Bureau is the major sponsor for the event by providing HKS5M.
HKIA and the Steering Committee will further approach possible donors for
more sponsorship hoping to enrich the programme of the biennale.

4 Collaboration with Shenzhen Counterpart
¢ To facilitate collaboration between Hong Kong and Shenzhen (S7), a joint
Academic Exchange Committee (AEC) led by SZ counterpart was set up.

e Members of the Steering Committee including Professor Wang Weijen
(HKU), Professor Bernard Lim (CUHK), Mr. Alvin Yip (PolyU) and Mr. Ivan Fu
were appointed into the Committee.

5 Call for Curator
An international call for curator (“invitation”) was launched on 11 May 2009
through HKIA website and networks of UIA and ACASIA. The deadline for
submission is 21 June 2009. For details, please refer to:
http://www.hkia.net/view_section.php?id=6629&level_id=57
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The Third Quarterly General Meeting 2009
Honorary Secretary Report

24 September 2009
2009FE=FEEFWERRS
2009994248

Board of Practices (BP)

struction Contractual

- SN e 1 Hyperlink with Architectural Services Department

The Board of Practices proposed and the Council endorsed that a full List of
Registered Practices currently kept by HKIA be posted on the HKIA website
and be hyperlinked to the ArchSD website. The webpage lists out all HKIA
Registered Practices with website details had been hyperlink to the ArchSD
web page since August 2009.

#

2 Business Promotion Committee
The Committee proposed and the BP endorsed that a simplified Chinese
version of HKIA list of Architectural Practices shall be established using
Mainland server to better promote HKIA Registered Practices in the Greater
China market.

3 Legal & Finance Committee
¢ An ad-hoc meeting on the Professional Indemnity Insurance Scheme
was held by the Committee on 3 August. An Expression of Interest (EOI)
Exercise was launched after the meeting to collect sufficient
commitment to initiate the Scheme. Meanwhile, the Committee is
negotiating with the insurance company to get the detail of the policy.
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e The Committee is organizing the "HKIA Board of Practices: Legal Seminar
Series on China Topics” from August to October 2009. The first seminar
of the series was held on 11 August and was well-received by HKIA
members and Registered Practices.

4 Contract and Dispute Resolution Committee
The Committee organized two seminars on 8 July and 29 July on
‘Construction contractual arrangement and cost control in China’and
‘Tendering and Construction Law in China’ respectively. The Committee is
also establishing a mechanism on the referral of Expert Witness, as well as
reviewing the disciplinary hearing procedure of HKIA.

Board of Local Affairs (BLA)

1 Nominations

e Mr LAU Kwing Lam Glenn was appointed by the Government as a
member of Land and Development Advisory Committee, Mr CHU Hok
Wang Clement was appointed and Mr YIM Shun See was re-appointed as
member of its Building Subcommittee, Mr LEUNG Kit Man Andy was re-
appointed as the member of its Land Subcommittee and Mr HO Man Yiu
lvan was appointed as member of its Planning Subcommittee for the
new term of 3 year from 1 July 2009 to 30 June 2012.

¢ Mr HO Kin Wai Stephen was appointed as member of the CreateSmart
Initiative Vetting Committee for two years from 1 August 2009 to 31 July
2011,
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Dr Gordon FONG and Mr Franklin YU were appointed as member and
alternate member of the Advisory Committee on Barrier Free Access of
Buildings Department for the new term of 2 years from 31 July 2009 to 30
July 2011 respectively.

Mr TSANG Wai Yin Michael and Mr Franklin YU were nominated to
Highways Department to sit on the Review Panel under Land
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance for the new term of 3 years
commencing from April 2010.

Submission of Written Views / Responses to Local Affairs

A paper containing preliminary views on the public engagement on
Building Design to Foster a Quality and Sustainable Built Environment
was presented in a press conference and released to media on 18 June
2009.

A press release to respond on the recommendations of Taskforce on
Economic Challenges of the Government in helping the development of
the six identified industries including creative industry on 23 June 2009.

Panel on Development on 15 July 2009 to deliver views on the proposal
of lowering the application threshold from 90% to 80% under Land
(Compulsory Sales for Redevelopment) Ordinance.

Events

Design competition for the Development of a Piazza in Tsim Sha Tsui
The stage one submission was closed on 17 June 2009. 72 submissions
were received. The adjudication for stage one was completed on 29 June
2009. 4 teams were shortlisted for entering into stage 2 of the
competition.
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e HKIA + PGBC One Day Green Tour to Shenzhen

HKIA and PGBC held a one day green tour to Shenzhen on 27 June 2009.
The tour met the Shenzhen Green Building Council to have an exchange
and visited three green buildings in Shenzhen, including the tower of
Shenzhen Institute of Building Research, serviced apartment Fraser Place
Shekou, and the headquarters of China Merchants Property
Development Co. Ltd. which is a renovation of the old Sanyang factory
building.

HKIA + PGBC Forum on Building Design to Foster a Quality and
Sustainable Built Environment

Further to the launch of public engagement on Building Design to
Foster a Quality and Sustainable Built Environment by Council for
Sustainable Development on 20 June 2009, HKIA and PGBC, being the
partner organizations of CSD, held a forum on at Hong Kong Convention
and Exhibition Centre on 11 July 2009. Mr Bernard Chan, Chairman of
CSD, speakers and members from HKIA, HKIE, HKILA, HKIP and HKIS, and
representatives of other partner organizations attended the forum to
exchange views on the subject. About 200 participants attended the
forum.
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Ideas Competition for Bruce Lee’s Residence

The international competition is to invite ideas from professionals and
public for restoring and optimizing the use of space of the late Mr Bruce
Lee's former residence at Kowloon Tong. The competition is also to
engage the community in the restoration project, with a view to
converting the residence to a tourism attraction in memory of Mr Bruce
Lee’s contribution to the development of martial arts and the film
industry. The competition had launched since 20 July 2009 and
registrations for the competition was closed on 31 August 2009.
Submission of entry will close on 15 October 2009 and announcement
of results is scheduled for November / December 2009.

CPD Seminar on Minimal Invasive Architecture

Environment and Sustainable Development Committee invited
Mr Nicholas Perren of Turner + Associates Architects to deliver a CPD
Seminar on Minimal Invasive Architecture to HKIA members on 23 July
2009.

Briefing Session on Shatin to Central Link

MTRC gave a briefing session to HKIA members on the new strategic
railway link — Shatin to Central Link on 19 August 2009. MTRC provided
an introduction to the concept and scheme of SCL, in particular the
Cross Harbour Section, and introduced the feasibility of different scheme
options for crossing the harbour.

[/ EHNBHRESTLE]
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¢ Briefing Session on Updates of Central Kowloon Route

The consultant of Central Kowloon Route delivered a briefing session to
HKIA members on the updates of the CKR project on 24 August 2009. In
addition to the alignment options and preliminary design of CKR, the
consultation also gave a briefing on the EIA, preservation of Yau Ma Tei
Police Station, and urban design studies at Yau Ma Tei and Ma Tau Kok
areas.

Informal Discussion Session on Hong Kong Island East Harbourfront Study
Planning and Lands Committee invited Planning Department to have an
informal discussion session with members of HKIA and allied professional
institutes on public engagement on Hong Kong Island East Habourfront
Study on 25 August 2009. The Study is one of the planning reviews
undertaken for areas around the Victoria Harbour as part of the Harbour
Plan Review aiming at formulating a comprehensive plan for
enhancement of the Island East harbourfront areas focusing on
connectivity and pedestrian accessibility. Participants delivered initial
views in the forum.
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Board of Educational Affairs (BEdA)

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2009

HKIA/ARB Professional Assessment 2009

¢ Registration closed on 17 July 2009

e No. of applications : 420 (271 re-sitting candidates and 149 fresh
candidates)

HKIA/ARB Lecture & Seminar Series 2009
e There are 29 lectures in total scheduled from 8 June to 25 September

(Paper 1 Subject Panel Workshop will be scheduled in November)
¢ Enrolment for each lecture ranges from 167 to 242

¢ Design Papers Adviser Session was held on 25 May 2009

Fact-Finding Study for HKIA

Mr. Choi Chee Cheong presented the findings of his study to the Board of
Educational Affairs on 14 July 2009 and his final report had been endorsed
by the Council.

UGC Higher Education Review 2010
The Board had issued a position paper to University Grants Committee (UGC)
expressing the Institute’'s comments on Higher Education Review 2010.
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5 HKIA Student Medal
The selection process and criteria for HKIA Student Medal had been
reviewed by the working group led by Mr. Poon Sing Chi Stephen and were
endorsed by Council.

The new selection guidelines were adopted in selecting the HKIA Student
Medal 2009 medal recipient from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

6 Mutual Recognition of Accreditation Systems with AACA
HKIA President will attend Architects Accreditation Council of Australia
(AACA) National Visiting Panel (NVP) visit to University of Western Australia
on 13 — 16 September to observe the AACA accreditation procedures. al 1 day Football Tournament

Signing the Agreement for Mutual Recognition of Accreditation Systems of
Architecture Programmes with AACA will be followed by exchange of
documents by mail after the NVP visit.

7 Continuing Professional Development Committee
A total of 74% members have submitted their CPD Declaration Forms for
2008 as at 19 August 2009.

To gauge members’ view on HKIA proposal for tying the compliance of
mandatory CPD requirement with the renewal of HKIA membership, a
Members'forum on CPD was held on 3 September.
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CPD Event Highlights

CPD Seminar on Technology of Waterproofing and Leakage Repair Works
by Mr. Simon Chan on 19 June

CPD Site Visit to HKIA Annual Awards 2008 Award Winning Projects :
Hong Kong Jockey Club Creative Arts Centre & Caritas Lok Kan School on
20 June

CPD Seminar on Construction Contractual Arrangement and Cost
Control in China by Mr. Kenneth Kwan on 8 July

CPD Seminar on How to make Hong Kong a better place for architect by
Mr. Mathias Woo on 17 July

CPD Seminar Series on Contract Conditions 2005 : Extension of Time &
Claims for Loss of Expenses by Prof. Edwin Chan on 22 July

CPD Seminar on Minimal Invasive Architecture by Mr. Nicolas Perren on
23 July

CPD Seminar on Architectural Photography : Jorn Utzon's Sydney Opera
House by Ms. Katarina Stibe on 27 July

CPD Seminar on Tendering and Construction Law in China by Dr. Song
Sio Chong on 29 July

CPD Seminar on Universal Accessibility --- the New Design Paradigm for
the 21st Century by Mr. Joseph Kwan on 10 August

CPD Seminar on 4= NaY A B E by Dr. Chan Wan, Ng Man Ching and
Hulu on 18 August
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CPD Seminar on [CU&ETEI) - [BUE - 7K - #% - X¥DE] by Prof.
Wallace Chang on 26 August

CPD Seminar Series on Contract Conditions 2005 : A Practical Review
of Some Common Issues Arising Under the Standard Form of Building
Contract 2005 With Reference To Relevant Legal Authorities by Mr. Martin
Downey on 8 September

Board of Mainland Affairs (BMA)

1 CEPA
Attempt in registering as PRC Class 1 Registered Architects:

In response to the Early & Pilot Implementation in Guangdong Province
of CEPA, HKIA Members having attained the PRC Class 1 Registered
Architect Qualification through mutual recognition exercises were
invited to express interest in registering to become Class 1 Registered
Architect and practice in Guangdong.

The list of interested HKIA Members has been passed to Construction
Department of Guangdong Province for formulating the implementation
measures.

Comparison on Job Scopes and Responsibilities of Architects in Hong
Kong and Mainland funded by the Professional Services Development
Assistance Scheme and executed by HKU and Tsinghua University,
entered the final stage. The findings would be announced in late-
September or early-October 2009.
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e Continue dialogue with Practice Qualification Registration Center of
MOHURD to keep open on application for CEPA.

e To approach the Chief Executive of HKSAR via Hon. Patrick Lau to keep
open on further application for CEPA.

PRC Construction Project Manager Qualification:

e The first stage registration of the PRC Construction Project Manager
Qualification special assessment was closed on 7 August 2009.

e 50 applications were received.

e The PRC Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development and the
China Association of Engineering Consultants are formulating contents
of training & assessment for the registrants in Hong Kong.

Co-operation agreement with the Department of Housing

and Urban-rural Development of Hebei Province, PRC - 2009

China Forum on Urban Development & Hebei Urban Expo

¢ According to the co-operation agreement with the Department of
Housing and Urban-rural Development of Hebei Province, the HKIA is
invited to participate in their 2009 China Forum on Urban Development
& Hebei Urban Expo in September 2009.
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e Mr. Dominic Lam, Honorary Secretary, Mr. Edward Shen, Past President
and Mr. Martin Tam, BMA Chairman, will deliver speeches for the Institute
at this symposium in Shijiazhuang. HKIA delegation of around 16 people
will also attend the symposium and join the exhibition on 18-21
September.

e A study tour to Hebei, exclusively only for HKIA Members, is being
organized for October/November with the Department of Housing and
Urban-rural Development of Hebei Province.

e Hebei working group has been organized to take matters forward.
The11 cities are Shijiazhuang, Tangshan, Langfang, Xingtai, Gandan,
Hengshui, Zhangjiakou, Qinhuangdao, Cangzhou, Baoding, Chengde.

3 Guangdong Forum
* The HKIA Guangdong Forum was successfully held on 24 August 2009.

¢ More than 80 Mainland and Hong Kong Architects attended the event
and had an in-depth sharing on project experience in Ukraine, Macau,
Middle-East and South-East Asia.

e Mrs. Pamela Tan, Director of the HKSAR Home Affairs Department, was
the Guest of Honour and delivered a welcome speech.

e M. Liang Xiong-guang, Director of the Practice Qualification Registration
Centre of the Guangdong Province, representatives of the Liaison Office
of Central People’s Government in HKSAR, HKSAR Development Bureau,
Commerce and Economic Development Bureau and the Hong Kong
Trade and Development Council also attended the forum.
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Sichuan Earthquake Relief
Assistance in Sichuan reconstruction projects, which are financially funded
by the HKSAR:

¢ The Institute has assisted in the feasibility study of more than 130
reconstruction projects, including hospitals, schools, social welfare
facilities, rehabilitation centres and Wolong Natural Reserve.

¢ The Wolong Natural Reserve Reconstruction Projects Subgroup, joined
the Hong Kong expert team and assist in the design study of the Wolong
Natural Reserve reconstruction on the Institute’s behalf.

e HKIA representatives also attended a workshop on challenges on
Wolong's future development, which were jointly held by the Forestry
Department of Sichuan Province and the HKSAR Development Bureau
on 29 August 2009.

Technical Tour to Taiwan Planning and Design of Schools and Parks with
Disaster Refuge and Relief Facilities:

¢ \olunteers made a technical trip to Taiwan with HKIP members on 24-26
August 2009 on self-financing basis.

e The group studied the local post-quake redevelopment, disaster
reduction, also planning and design of schools and parks with disaster
refuge and relief facilities.
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Board of External Affairs (BExA)

1 UIA Committee / UIA Region IV Work Programme “Architecture
for All”
It is suggested to stage some series of seminar in Beijing so as to inform
and update the members in Beijing about the latest development of
technology products and "Architecture for All”issues

Mr. Joseph Kwan would continue to serve as the Director of UIA Region IV
Work Programme “Architecture for All" for another 3-year term ending in
2011

2 Community Development Committee
Committee is currently drafting the proposal with the Organizer for the
application of funding from CreateSmart Initiative for the exhibition with
Hulu Culture

The Roundtable Community at Tin Shui Wai schools started in mid August. 5
members are serving as the mentors for the programme

Collaboration with iPROA to prepare a proposal to HKSAR to apply for
funding from CreateSmart Initiative, with latest IT technology to work out a
proposal to help promoting architectural practices as one of the creative
industries
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Board of Internal Affairs (BIA)

VRSN LLIMALE + UREAN GREERS

Ao — . o :

k- ORI

Young Architects’ Committee
¢ Young Architects' Award 2009 was launched in early September. Closing
date for submission is 9 October.

e Theme: Anti-drug Idea Competition
¢ Jury Meeting: 12 October 2009
e Jury Panel Review: 17 October 2009

e 2 training sessions for Architecture Walk host will be held on Saturdays,
10 October and 28 November respectively.

Annual Dinner Committee

¢ Theme for HKIA Annual Dinner : We are the Legend.
Date : Saturday, 21 November 2009
Place : Sports Hall, Hong Kong Football Club

¢ Deadline for early bird table reservation is 9 October 2009.

100-Year of Architecture in Hong Kong Committee
¢ The next photo trip to Peak Tramway to Wan Chai Gap was scheduled for
26 September.

e The result of “Disappearing Hong Kong” Photo Competition 2008 was
uploaded onto HKIA website and the prize presentation would be held
at the Third Quarterly General 2009 Meeting. The winning and honorable
mention photos had been displayed at the HKIA Premises

RESEESE
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4  Welfare & Activities Committee
Congratulations to our Football Team who has won a champion of the Joint
Professional One-day Football Tournament on 15 August 2009. For the result - 3'.'i.' F_', LA
& pictures, please visit our website at == II |
http://www.hkia.net/news_content.php?id=7211&news_type=230

5 Media Resources and Publications Committee
The membership list booklet (1956-2009) will be published in early 2010
Members are requested to update their personal information by the end of
2009 for timely production.

6  Quality Building Award 2010
e Theme for Quality Building Award 2010: Quality Transcends Time

e Guest of Honor: Mrs. Carrie Lam Cheng Yuet-ngor, JP, Secretary for
Development, HKSAR Government

e Nomination Begin: 1 July 2009
¢ (losing date for submission: 15 January 2010
7.  Annual Awards 2009 Committee

¢ A nomination brief will be launched on HKIA website in late October
2000.

PD Seminar organised by Board of
actices: Fire-Engineering

¢ Deadline for submission will be in early January 2010.
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Special Project : Hong Kong - Shenzhen Bi-city Biennale

1

of Architecture and Urbanism 2009

Selection and Appointment of Curator

¢ The Steering Committee was in receipt of four curatorial proposals by the
deadline of 12 June 2009 and conducted two round interviews with
potential curators on 20 June and 23 June 2009.

® By consensus, the Steering Committee agreed to recommend a curatorial
team led by Ms. Marisa YIU, Assistant Professor of HKU as the Chief
Curator of the Hong Kong - Shenzhen Bi-city Biennale of Urbanism and
Architecture 2009 which was confirmed by the HKIA Council at its
meeting in July 2009. Her team consisting of the following team
members as Curators with diverse expertise and international
perspective:
- Eric SCHULDENFREI, Curator for Education, Film and Media;
- Frank YU, Curator for Architecture and Landscape
- Alan LO, Curator for Arts, City Integration and Events.

Press Conference
e The Press Conference was held on 9 September 2009, Wednesday, at
3:30pm at the Shop L, Central Pier No. 7, Central, Hong Kong.

e The curatorial team was introduced by the organizers and Shenzhen
counterpart was invited as the guest of the press conference.

Tentative Date of Opening and Exhibition Venue

The official opening ceremony will be held in the West Kowloon Cultural
District (WKCD) tentatively scheduled for 3 or 4 December 2009 (subject to
the diary of the Guest of Honour).

RBHRIRE : 2009FEEB/RYIPHREENETRE
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4 Sponsorship
Home Affairs Bureau is the major sponsor for the event by providing HKS5M.
Possible donors and in-kind sponsorship are welcome. For enquiry, please
contact Ms. Tara Chan and Ms. Vivian Sie of the HKIA Secretariat:
e Tel:85225116323
e Fax:85225196011
e Email: hkiasec@hkia.org.hk

5 Call for Exhibitors
¢ A call for exhibitors was launched in August 2009 through HKIA website.

The deadline for submission was 9 September 2009. f ¥
50th National Celebration Dragon Boat

e For English version:

http://www.hkia.net/view_section.php?id=7148&level_id=114 10288

e For Chinese version:
http://www.hkia.net/view_section.php?id=7245&level_id=114

e The submissions are being reviewed by the Curatorial Team led by Chief
Curator Marisa Yiu who would finalize the list of exhibitors. e :!; B E WS
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Dominic LAM, HKIA

N y e Kshop on Forestry Stewardship Council
MHIR SBRRTPEER Responsible Management of Building

Honorary Secretary - Material (Timber)
SERENESEHWER (07/10/2009)
14 September 2009 '
2009898148
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o ol
Training Session for A ecture Walk Host
(10/10/2009) . vy

- Young Architect Award 2009
“Shortlisting Meeting
(12/10/2009)

The Annual General Meeting 2009
Honorary Secretary Report

10 December 2009

2009 FFFRSEFWERRS
2009128108

Board of Local Affairs (BLA)

1. Nominations
e Mr LAM Wo Hei was re-nominated to Construction Industry Council for

the new term commencing 1 February 2010.

¢ The Institute confirmed that Mr NG Wing Shun Vincent and Mr LEUNG
Kit Man would continue representing as member and alternate member
of Harbourfront Enhancement Committee respectively for the extended
term of six-month period from 1 September 2009 to 28 February 2010

2.  Submission of written views / Response to local affairs
e Press release was issued in response to the public engagement on
building design to foster quality and sustainable built environment on
11 November 2009

¢ Feedback on Hong Kong Island East Harbourfront Study to Planning
Department on 5 November 2009

e Stage 1 community engagement on enhancement of the Lau Fau Shan
rural township and surrounding areas was held on 5 November 2009.

AHEFED
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e Press release on Policy Address 2009-2010 was issued on 14 October
2009.

e Response to Design Guidelines for Adaptive Reuse of Heritage Buildings
was sent to Director of Buildings on 12 October 2009

3. Events
e Participation in Eco Expo Asia 2009

HKIA participated in the Eco Expo Asia 2009 held between 28 and 31
October 2009 at Asia-World Expo by holding an exhibition booth
jointly with HKIE and PGBC regarding the state of sustainable
buildings in Hong Kong.

e HKIA Environment and Sustainable Design Seminar Series

Low carbon cities in China and zero carbon house in Korea delivered
by Arup held on 6 October 2009.

The high science and low technology of green architecture delivered
by Prof Edward Ng on 8 October 2009.

Sustainable demonstration projects for China and ecocities for
tomorrow delivered by The Oval Partnership and Simon Kwan &
Associates Ltd. on 3 December 2009.

e CPD Site Visit and Experience Sharing on Vertical Greening

A visit to the site of the Hong Kong Housing Authority at Yau Tong
was held on 7 November 2009. It is a site to research on the vertical
greening panel system in the form of prefabricated external cladding
with integrated irrigation pipes on trial basis with an aim to overcome
the spatial constraint in greenery design at public housing estates.
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Eegal Seminar Series on China Topics:

- Legal Issues for Foreign Investment in

- China Property Projects and Transactions
(13/10/2009)

I‘ﬁKIA CPD Seminar Series on Contract
. Conditions 2005
(16/10/2009)

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2009

69



i -ia Honorary Secretary’s Quarterly Report 2009.
o 2009EE%§%WEE§F$E¢

¢ Consultation Session on Urban Renewal Strategy Review
- HKIA was invited by the public engagement consultant of URS Review
for a consultation session to hear members'views on URS Review. The
session was held on 1 December 2009.

¢ Discussion Session on WKCD Development
- HKIA invited the WKCD Authority to brief members on the latest
development of the WKCD project on 17 November 2009.
Representatives of Transport Department and Highways Department
were present.

¢ Meeting Civic Party on Constitutional Development
- In response to the invitation of Civic Party, a discussion session was
held on 7 December 2009 to exchange views on the latest proposal
of the government on political reform.

¢ Ideas Competition for Waterfront Development at Ex-North Point
Estate Site
- An exhibition displaying the winning entries of the competition was
held at HKIA premises between 5 and 16 October 2009.

¢ Ideas Competition for Bruce Lee’s Residence
- Submission of entry was closed on 15 October 2009.
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Seminar Series 2009
(21/10/2009)

70 The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2009



Board of Internal Affairs (BIA)

1.  Annual Awards 2009 Committee
e HKIA Annual Awards 2009 was launched on 24 October 2009.
¢ Deadline for submission is by 5:30pm, Monday, 4 January 2010.

2.  Annual Dinner Committee
e [t was our honor to have Mr Mak Chai Kwong, JP, Permanent Secretary for
Development (Works) as the Guest of Honor at the Annual Dinner.
e HKIA Annual Dinner was successfully concluded on 21 November 2009
at the Hong Kong Football Club with 400 members and guests
attending.

3.  Young Architects’ Committee
e The winner of Young Architect Award 2009 is Mr Tang Yiu Lun.
e The result of the Young Architect Award 2009 was announced on 21
November 2009 at the HKIA Annual Dinner, followed by an exhibition at
HKIA Premises.

4, Student & Graduate Members Committee
HKIA Sharing session with architecture freshmen at HKU and CUHK was held
on 5 November and 9 November respectively.

5. Media Resources and Publications Committee
It was confirmed that HKIA membership list booklet (1956-2009) would be
printed for members’ collection and electronic version will be available in
HKIA website for members with security passwords to log on.
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MEC c)"Expo Asia Joint Booth

. Opening Ceremony
- (28/10/2009)
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Board of Mainland Affairs (BMA)

1. CEPA
e Farly & Pilot Implementation in Guangdong Province

- Aforum on Early & Pilot Implementation in Guangdong Province for
Hong Kong architectural profession was held on 19 November 2009
in Pan-yu by the Construction Department, Department of Foreign
Trade and Economic Cooperation of Guangdong Province (B8
SRR R IMEE ER) & the Foreign Trade & Economic Cooperation Bureau
of Pan-yu Guangzhou Municipality (BEBEIMEEB).

- The forum was to explore simpler application and approval process
with Pan-yu as a trial point.

- 18 HKIA members attended the forum and shared views with the
counterparts.

- The next meeting with Guangdong counterparts is tentatively
scheduled for mid-January 2010 in Hong Kong.

¢ Dialogue with the PRC Ministry of Housing & Urban-Rural Development
(MOHURD) & the HKSAR Development Bureau on registration on the
mainland & establishing architectural practices is on-going.

e Report on the comparison on Job Scopes and Responsibilities of
Architects in Hong Kong and Mainland, funded by the Professional
Services Development Assistance Scheme, was completed. A workshop
aiming to investigate the feasibility of suggestions made in the report
will be held. All members are invited to attend and share their views.

HKCPS visit to Beijing - Meeting with
MOHURD :
(3/11/2009)

e Assessment of PRC Construction Projects Manager Qualification is under
preparation.
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2.

Co-operation agreement with the Department of Housing and
Urban-rural Development of Hebei Province
e Hebei Study Tour

A study tour was held from 3-6 November 2009.

A delegation of 7 HKIA members visited Shijiazhuang City (&%)
& Handan City (HB&8) and met with officials of the Department of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development of Hebei Province (Tt
BEBFMAMEELEE), Town and Country Planning Board of
Shijiazhuang City and Handan City (BRI HREIS R HEHIREIS).

e (ity Planning and Development of Hebei Province

According to the co-operation agreement with the Department of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development of Hebei Province, the HKIA
would assist in the city planning and development of the province.

The Institute would invite members and Registered Practices to
participate in various projects assigned by Hebei Province.

The "Victory Boulevard” project in Shijiazhuang city via HKIA is in
progress.
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3.
4.
| CPD Seminar organized b
Practices: Music and Architect
(10/11/2009)
3.
4.

74

inar organized by Board of
s: Architect as Expert Witness
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Sichuan Earthquake Relief

The Institute has assisted in the Sichuan Hong Kong Rehabilitation Centre (J|]
BREEDI), which is financially funded by the HKSAR, by attending expert
panel meetings with officials of the HKSAR Government and Sichuan
authorities, and offered comments on the design.

Cocktail in Shanghai for HKIA members
e A cocktail at the KEE Club in Shanghai was held on 28 October 2009 by
the Eastern China Liaison Group.

¢ The cocktail provided an occasion for HKIA members to exchange with
local professionals in a relaxing and unwinding environment.
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Board of Educational Affairs (BEdA)

1 Mandatory CPD 2008 - members achievement
e There were in total 2064 members (98.2% of members who submitted
CPD Declaration 2008) fulfilled the CPD requirement.

e 1845 members completed more than 25 hours which is the minimum
CPD requirement.

2 2nd Professional Interview
¢ HKIA/ARB Professional Assessment 2008 — Second Professional Interview
was held on 26 September and 20 out of 34 candidates passed the

. . on WKCD Development
interview.

CEERBHNEN LB EERMEN
=

3 Professional Assessment 2009
e All the written papers will be held in HITEC in Kowloon Bay. Timetable of
written papers is as follows:

8 Dec 2009 (Tue) 9:00am - 12:00noon Paper 1
8 Dec 2009 (Tue) 2:30pm — 4:00pm Paper 3
9 Dec 2009 (Wed) 9:00am - 1:00pm Paper 2
10 Dec 2009 (Thu) 9:00am - 10:30am Paper 4
10 Dec 2009 (Thu) 11:15am - 12:45pm Paper 5
17 Dec 2009 (Thu) 9:00am - 1:00pm Paper 6
17 Dec 2009 (Thu) 4:00pm - 6:00pm Paper 7a
18 Dec 2009 (Fri) 9:00am - 5:00pm Paper 7b
1 Mar 2010 (Mon) Release of results (written papers)
HESHE
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4 Review of PA Adviser System
e PA Adviser System has been reviewed by Professional Assessment
Committee. The suggested improvements were approved by the Board
of Educational Affairs. The PA Handbook and Logbook have been
subsequently updated.

5 Accreditation Issues
e A taskforce was set up to deliberate the ways forward for HKIA on
accreditation and membership issues.

6  CPD Event Highlights
e CPD Seminar Series on Contract & Conditions 2005 — Assessment of
Extension of Time and Concurrent Delay on 16 October 2009

e HKIA, AIA-HK, HKIPM CPD Seminar on Fast Track Project Management on
20 October 2009

e CPD Seminar on Glass in Buildings & Fagade Quality — Ensuring You Get
What You Want on 29 October 2009

e (CPD Site Visit to Upper Ngau Tau Kok on 31 October

e (CPD Seminar on Punggol Waterway & Eco-Precinct on 9 November 2009
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o HERENBE > EOREMNBZ-TBLOSRESBEREES2IZ S
<REBEHXEE>IR1082088817 -

* <EBFRBRVERE—EEINEEITTRERI>R108298447 -
o BHERFBALUHIM0E318%47 -
o <BISKERLREFE>IR11BIBET -
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Board of Practices (BP)

TR | |
1 HKIA Proposed list of Practices for Minor Public Works ' 1: k
e The list comprising all registered practices has been uploaded to the { b i
website of ArchSD under “Other lists of Consultants in Private Sector — i |
Architectural”since September 2009.

2 Business Promotion Committee
e The new simplified Chinese website comprising a full list of registered
practices is underway and will be launched by the end of 2009.

3 Legal & Finance Committee
e The proposal for Professional Indemnity Insurance has been received
and the facility would be open to all practices to participate in early
2010.

e Four seminars on legal issues in China were held in August through
October 2009 and were well-received by registered practices and
individual members.

4 Contract and Dispute Resolution Committee
e In view of the increasing demand of Expert Witness, the Committee
has re-run the ‘Architect as Expert Witness Series, consisting of five
seminars, in October through December 2009, in order to equip HKIA
members with necessary knowledge and skills as expert witnesses.
Participants who have completed all 5 seminars in the series will be
automatically included in the list.

m%g%aﬂ - Hong Kong - Shenzhen Bi-ci
Opening Ceremony /
(3/12/2009)
1 BERRHBY/N\BARTESEHIE
e 200998 - BRASHAMBED K CHIZESMOMNLEEERM

R

2 FHEHEESS
o DSHTEREMBHEAMBENBRPEFTIEISIEARED - 5220095
FERR °

3 /fr?_&ﬂﬁ%é,%ﬁ
o PUFHISEERBNAINETEIZ - 20105 - EESERTEIZNT/TEE
NEBEHY -
* 2009F8BR10BETURPEERENRS » RZNISENZE N
SLO

4 BESHRABMUNDSHEEZ
o ERHHERBANE CHNTE K  ZESEIET [REMERERE
ROERE] - jR2009F10BH12BE7, BRREESES BREMBSSE
EREBERBAMNZNEHENBE R - RRABSBENSNERBHE
BN A D BREMB SR ADE -
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2009FEBBWEESERE

ESD Seminar Series Ill: Sustainable
Demonstration Projects for China and Eco
Cities of Tomorrow
BERUSERERZETEN- OFERE
EEEKRE R - ()  PENTFESI
StEIREB < £ .
(3/12/2009)

| Annual General Meeting 2009
2009FBFARS
(10/12/2009)

Board of External Affairs (BExA)

1 UIA Committee / UIA Region IV Work Programme “Architecture for All”

e Lee Chung Ming, Chairman of Heritage and Conservation Committee

(HCQ), Board of Local Affairs, was nominated to serve as a member in UIA

Work Programme on Heritage in Region IV which was convened by
Architectural Society of China

2 CAA/ARCASIA Committee
e The 19th CAA General Assembly and Conference is scheduled from 15 -
20 February 2010 in Sri Lanka

e The 14th Asian Congress of Architects is scheduled for 26 — 30 October
2010 in Pakistan

3 Community Development Committee
¢ As HKIA was one of the supporting organizations of Social Forum 2009
organized by the Hong Kong Council of Social Services. Billy Tam,
Stephen Ho and volunteers from the Committee led two architectural
tours on 24 and 26 October 2009 to Hong Kong Wetland Park and
Stanley respectively.

¢ The Committee is working with the Board of Practices in preparing the
submission to CreateSmart Initiative for the Virtual Hong Kong project
collaborating with the Internet Professional Association (iProA)

4 Academic Exchange Committee
e The 2 recipients of Fontainebleau Schools Scholarship Summer
Programme 2009 returned from Paris and gave a presentation to the
members at the Committee meeting on 25 September 2009

RINSEEL

1 EBRERENHIENE [ ARE] THENME
o AMEHE NOBERNREZESTRSPHRRNERBLITH
PERZESSSENERZENHE BB OE TF/E

2 WS EEMBE ONREMREEEE
e R2010F2815—208 R EM FETE10BRE MR EMNHRDS < B
-

* [R2010510R268—308REEHNBRITE 14BRNZEENAS -

3 TERREEEES
° BEBUSRBHZ LI 2009F T BHIEB - MEBERENSBINESF
BATZ— - WhH20095F 108248 R26BET D AIBEESHBRERE
Bl {TREZEMNRE L MA—RHENESERMLAB R ZEE

EE -
- SESEENLTHUSE - O [AEDEE)] PEROWRTLHE
SIRETERSBEZ -

4 BMIAREES
e [R2009F9F258HEESE 2% L - MITES2009%FontainebleauZ2R=
RSN ERSNHECROKRNSEDZ L REHRR 2R -
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Special Project - Hong Kong Shenzhen Biennale

1.  Hong Kong’s Exhibition Opening Ceremony
e The Honourable Henry Tang, Chief Secretary of HKSAR, and Mrs. Carrie
Yau, Permanent Secretary for Home Affairs were the officiating guests at
the Opening Ceremony on 3 December 2009 at 4:30pm at West
Kowloon Culture District.

2. Hong Kong’s Exhibition period
e 3 December 2009 - 27 February 2010

* For details and highlights of activities during the exhibition period, Joint Professional Table Tennis Tournament 2009

please click http://www.hkszbiennale.org 125

3. Shenzhen’s exhibition period
¢ Shenzhen'’s exhibition is held from 6 December 2009 - 23 January 2010

¢ For details, please click http://www.szhkbiennale.org

RHRIRE— 2009FEBE/RYINMERENETRE

1. BEEBHSER
o EBERBARININ2009F12838 TFA4R0DEBNEIBET - &
BT RERITRBRESLSE - BIMEIHEERSE  LEREHS
BEEENERASKEL TEILERE -

2. BEEH
o RERR : 2009F128338E2010F23278

s UINEEEREBHBERBE @ FRHEBENttp://www.hkszbiennale.org

3. ZFJI=H
«  HIEREEAR2009F12868%E2010%F 18238

. IMEBFHIE - BHEMEhttp://www.szhkbiennale.org

Qo Qo

Dominic LAM, HKIA

MK SsREgEees
Honorary Secretary
ESEREMBSEHRWER
10 December 2009
2009128108

(30/12/2009)
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COUNCIL'S REPORT

The Council have pleasure in present their annual report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Institute
for the year ended 31 March 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Institute are holding of meetings, lectures, examinations, exhibitions and competitions and similar
activities. The activities of the subsidiary are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009 are set out in the consolidated income and expenditure account on
page 6 of the annual report.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Institute during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in reserves on page 7 of the annual report and note 18 to the financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group and of the Institute during the year are set out in
note 11 to the financial statements.

BEERS
EEERNELAEBRATBEE_SBNF=P=1 DI FECREERUBY 2 WBEE -

EBFH
ABEoXBREBITER  BHE - il - BE - LEREMBLISE - EBATEHEIIRTHREME+_ -

ES
AEBEE _SINF=_RB=1t—HLFECEBIRAFTRE BIRSHmEK °

fEfs
AEERABSRENRIBEEBBERDDEIRAT R E CEFRORIBEBIR KB RAMEET/\

E NS B
AEBRASBRENIIE - BERRBBBED AW REME+— -
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COUNCIL AND OFFICE BEARERS

The council and office bearers of the Institute during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Ms. Kwong Sum Yee, Anna
Ms. Chow Wai Lee

Mr. Wong Kam Sing
Ms. Chan Ching Ying, Elizabeth

Mr. Lam Kwong Ki, Dominic
Mr. Lok Man Fai, Felix
Mrs. Mo Chu Kwok Wah, Julie

Prof. Chan Hon Wan, Edwin
Mr. Choi Kam Lung, Franky

Mr. Ho Man Yiu, Ilvan
Mr. Hui Man Bock, Bernard

Ms. Lau Man Kwan, Julia

Ms. Leung So Wan, Susan

(President)

Vice President)

Elected on 1 January 2009)
Vice President)

Vice President)

Expired on 31 December 2008)
Honorary Secretary)

Honorary Treasurer)

Honorary Treasurer)

Expired on 31 December 2008)
Council Member)

Council Member)

Elected on 1 January 2009)
Council Member)

Council Member)

Council Member)

Elected on 1 January 2009)
Council Member)

Elected on 1 January 2009)

~ o~ o~~~ o~~~ o~~~ o~ o~~~ o~ —~ —

Mr. Lush Alexander
Ms. So Ching

Ms. Sun Polly
Mr.Tam Tin Fong, Martin
Mr. Tang Wai Kin

Mr. Tang Wai Man, Tony

Ms. Wai Chui Chi, Rosman

Ms. Yeung Lai Fong, Alice

Mr. Chi Wuh Cherng, Daniel
Mr. Lam Ping Hong, Robert
Mr. Wong Ching Long, Jerome

Dr. Lu Yuen Cheung, Ronald
Prof. Lim Wan Fung, Bernard

(Council Member)

(Council Member)

(Elected on 1 January 2009)
(Council Member)

(Council Member)

(Council Member)

(Elected on 1 January 2009)
(Council Member)

(Council Member)

(Council Member)

(Council Member)

(Expired on 31 December 2008)
(Council Member)

(Expired on 31 December 2008)
(Council Member)

(Expired on 31 December 2008)
(Immediate Past President)
(Immediate Past President)
(Expired on 31 December 2008)

BESERBHARFBEA
AESERPABRTFENREEARSBHILTBAR ¢
Il Shonum (EF)

EET soun BlER) 2009FE1818F)
Exkit==Yvas G553

SEFRT T (BlEgR) (EHZE2008F128318)
MATESEE (EBWER)

v e (EBRUBER)

EXRBREFET L EBYFHR) (EHE2008F128318)
PRIEEHE (B%)

B = la (1B=8) (20091818 &)
EpEFwes (B%)

SF B (B%)

B BE T BlER) 2009FE1818F)
RREG L (BIER) (2009F1818&ET)
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HONORARY AUDITORS

The honorary auditors of the Institute during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Mr. Lee King Fun, Andrew (Expired on 31 December 2008)

Mr. Poon Sing Chi, Stephen

Mr. Pau Shiu Hung (Elected on 1 January 2009)

COUNCIL'S INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Institute or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a council of the Institute
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
was entered into or existed during the year.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Katon CPA Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

ST HED

ABESRFEANRBEARS BHILCEHBEEIR
28 (EHIZE20085F123318)

AR

E31BHESA (20091 B18ET)

BEASESHER

REBBATREQDRHYE - AE2SRETANBERA DR B AR S EEE R BEFEE AR EESH °
SEEH
REARBTENAEEIETONBA T2 NEAE R ER BB RITHEHEMEAELEASH
7l

AESRELHERSSIETERATB - REKESER - BREBZEBRABS ZMEE

On behalf of the Council
FIPEBH

7,

Kwong Sum Yee, Anna
I

President 2

Hong Kong, &8
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STATEMENT BY THE HONORARY AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS

(Registered under the Hong Kong Institute of Architects Incorporation Ordinance)
We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects together with the Council's

and the Auditor's reports for the year ended 31 March 2009 and confirm that, in accordance with the Rule 48 of "The Rules of
the Institute", we approve the financial statements and reports referred to above."

ERRYMNHABEEEZRNS T ZEFHNER

SEREMSE
(IRIR (SERENSSRBIFA) )

SEEBREBRENBSOEBUBRRE - LRESSRUEEF _SENF=R=T—DBLFEFHZRS - EZHER R
B (B2BRA) B 48 1% SFBBLAUBRERES °

Zien Lin

oy —
Poon Sing Chi, Stephen &#&fzE5c4 Pau Shiu Hung #8187 5c4
Honorary Auditor 752 EEm Honorary Auditor Z=F5#2 &80

Hong Kong, &i&
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS

(Registered under the Hong Kong Institute of Architects Incorporation Ordinance)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects (the "Institute") and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group") set out on pages 6 to 35, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 March 2009, and the consolidated income and expenditure account, the consolidated statement
of changes in reserves and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Council's responsibility for the financial statements

The council of the Institute are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with the Hong Kong Institute of Architects Incorporation Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit, and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Rule 64 of "The Rules of the Institute", and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

SEEZRNESBIRHEIRS

(IR (SERENDSABER) )

A (T8 [5%) ) DEUMNE 2L~ ANSERENSY ( [890) ) REWBAD (7K (5B ) 0
SHBRE - USFOUBRRCFEE_SRNE-A=t+ - DNFERADEESERREEX0 LEENRSNARS

HE  GERAT RIS HERER « MR B HORAE R SR -

BESRUBRAABHET
EFTREZRETLR (SBRENBSEBRM) HiEREEMPSIIIRZSUHRE - SETEIEHRET - BoRMEER
R REEMPEHIIRM IR BEINNBES - LM BREA B BRREFAERMEBNEAEREL  ERENERE
EWSFER - URZERFHEEROVSEES!

BEEINEE
SENELRERSSNEMHZSUBRAFERR - WK (BFSRA)) 5 64 (FRTCEQERBRERS - MEEMAE -5
SHAMABRSHNESOREMATEETAEITAEE -

SEELRESBSE LSRN (BBBER)) ETBRIF - BERRIZREFETERRRE - WREIRNTEE - US
BREENMYBRRESMBIOEREREL -
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the Institute's preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Institute's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS

(Registered under the Hong Kong Institute of Architects Incorporation Ordinance)

Qualified Opinion

Because of the absence of audited accounts of the associates, the Group had not adopted the equity method of accounting
for the associates as required by "Investments in associates" (HKAS 28). The financial effects of this departure could not be
quantified.

Except for the matters set out above, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of the affairs of the Institute and of the Group as at 31 March 2009 and of the Group's surplus and cash flows for the year then
ended.

EHPRIITIEELUENSHBUBBRMNBTERKEERNEHRE  HECNIESERISESENAE - 15O BIRIRGE
R MEBUBRAFBEAHERELNRR - EVEZSRRE - SstEBEIEZRBREEMPEIIRYBREE
BEEVMERIE] - ISREHAENSESES - BUFRYE SRIHINBIEHNMERERER - SstNRETEESSAMRANZS
HROSBMRATFLEESHSEISIEN - DURSHBIFERRVEERIIH ST -

BHEBE - EEMESNBERERRRNEEHRESSNENERRITER -

SEEZRNS BB RS
IR (SERENBSEBIEH) 5

GERRR
EBﬁ:ﬂIﬂEER SHENTIEBEHRE » SEBIWCATMEATRM [IRMBAINKRE] (SBI5ERE 28 37) ATRENR
WL WBERNUBHBEEEBLUEI -

BERULESES - BERBRIGEMBEREEEBNLANHRREBEREEER _SSNF=R=T—BNUERkEEEH
EFBILEFNEENRENRE -

}@k{-\ R —

Katon CPA Limited ZEIRS5IEH{TBRAT

Certified Public Accountants $2£Z 5180

Hong Kong, 24 September 2009 &7& - “SS N4, 81008
Lee Kit Wah 2=

Practising Certificate number P1453 #2522 #%52 P1453
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
fRE A RZHIR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 &2 SESNF=A=+—8I[FE

2009 2008
Notes Bzt HKS7E L HKS B
Turnover &%45 4 17,788,273 13,338,225
Costs AUA
Functions costs & )4~ 5 (7,800,195)  (4,133,371)
Lecture and examination costs &% & =54 (619,040) (569,355)
Publication costs ¥R (566,979)  (1,093,924)
Gross profit EF 8,802,059 7,541,575
Other revenue EMURA 4 371,201 4,445,236
Less iii: Employment costs i@ BAVA 6 (3,564,767)  (3,592,039)
Other operating and administrative expenses EAEE B {TEZH 8 (3,190,654)  (2,804,492)
Operating surplus before taxation R Bt Al4EE ek 2,417,839 5,590,280
Taxation $iIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax &8F)18 9 (47,701) (27,942)
Deferred taxation EERIE 9 57 (2,377)
Operating surplus after taxation fR{&ELRER 2,370,195 5,559,961
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
fno bR B EIR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 &2 SESNF=A=+—8I[FE

Investment
General revaluation Retained
reserves reserves surplus Total
— MR BGRERE RERER et
HKS HKS HKS HKS
EHES BEES BEES EHES
At 1 April 2007 RSt FMNA—AH 899,953 (8,962) 21,815,490 22,706,481

Surplus arising from revaluation of

available-for-sale investments

BHLURHECRERR 0 8,962 0 8,962
Released on disposal of

available-for-sale investments

HETHRBECKRERED 0 146,914 0 146,914
Surplus for the year T2 ;F £z 0 0 5,559,961 5,559,961
At 31 March 2008 R_ZEE/\F=A=+—H 899,953 146,914 27375451 28,422,318

Loss arising from revaluation of
available-for-sale investments

SHTHRIBECREBE 0 (583,290) 0 (583,290)
General reserves transfer to profit or loss
— AR\ SR/ (F)) (81,448) 0 0 (81,448)
Surplus for the year T fZ;F £z 0 0 2,370,195 2,370,195
At 31 March 2009 RZFESNF=RA=+—H 818,505 (436,376) 29,745,646 30,127,775

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2009
RoBERBRR_FINF=R=1—6

Notes BysE

ASSETS &E

Non-current assets JE;RENEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥)2, B5 K 5%1&
Available-for-sale investments GtHE 2B E

Current assets RENEE

Inventories - Finished goods 5& - 52At5

Trade and other receivables FEURBRE R B EL AR
Bank balances and cash 847 BRI 54

TOTAL ASSETS BER%E

RESERVES AND LIABILITIES i##{fgR&E&
Members' funds EEES

General reserves —fEE (&

Investment revaluation reserves 12 &ES&BI5 R
Retained surplus Ri&&

Non-current liabilities JEiREIE &
Obligations under finance leases BIEHEEE
Deferred taxation ELERIE

Current liabilities H&1&S &

Other payables ELAFE(TFR

Obligations under finance leases BIEHESEE
Tax payable ERIRIE

TOTAL RESERVES AND LIABILITIES R & (E40%R

Approved by the Council on 24 September 2009,
REEBRSENFN B +IIBHEESEE -

Y

Kwong Sum Yee, Anna
=IOl
President &

1
14

15
16

19
20

21
19

HKS &1

7,769,286

6,563,624

44,003
3,359,037

13,860,159

818,505
(436,376)

29,745,646

4179

40,159

1,356,613
25,070

42,313

Lok Man Fai, Felix

e

Honorary Treasurer X HHE
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2009
HKS B8

14,332,910

17,263,199

__315596,109

30,127,775

44,338

1,423,996

31,596,109

2008
HKS B#

7,932,061
7,146,914
15078975
94,663
5,369,976
9,591,693
15,056,332

__30135307

899,953
146,914
27,375451
28,422,318

1,606,323
29,249
3,077
1,638,649

30,135,307

89
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2009
BERBRER_SIINF=R=1+—8

2009 2008
Notes Pfi5E HKS &8 HKS &8s HKS &
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥, BiEs%1E 11 255,915 403,559
Investments in subsidiary IMIBR TN E 12 2 2
Available-for-sale investments Ot BECZE 14 6,563,624 7,146,914
6819541 7550475
Current assets iENEE
Inventories - Finished goods 5& - 52At5 44,003 94,663
Trade and other receivables FEURBE R B ELAREUTR 15 3,149,545 5,350,852
Amount due from subsidiary BB TENVEERE 12 1,508,957 1,509,657
Bank balances and cash $R{TRIRT {6 16 12,086,900 8,136,778
16789405 15091950
TOTAL ASSETS &SEMER 23,608,946 22,642,425
RESERVES AND LIABILITIES i##{fgR&(E&
Members' funds ESEE
General reserves —i (e 17 818,505 899,953
Investment revaluation reserves 12 &85 (5EEE 18 (436,376) 146,914
Retained surplus RiE&=e4 18 21,990,475 20,004,912
2372604 21051779
Non-current liabilities JEiRENE& (&
Obligations under finance leases RIES&(E 19 4179 34,124
Current liabilities RS &
Other payables EA0ETFR 21 1,207,093 1,527,273
Obligations under finance leases RIBHEESE 19 25,070 29,249
1232163 __ 1556522
TOTAL RESERVES AND LIABILITIES f{g K& &4 23,608,946 22,642,425

Approved by the Council on 24 September 2009,
REERISSNFN B HUEHEsSSES -

7. ‘

Kwong Sum Yee, Anna Lok Man Fai, Felix
IS 5838
President & Honorary Treasurer EFHHE
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
ERERER

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

BE_SENE=A=1—BLFE

Operating activities fZ&5E &)
Cash from operations [Note 22] & E8)p781R% (st _+_)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid E/UEERER

Net cash from operating activities E&;EENFRISIREIPER
Investing activities 12 &iE&h
Interest received BULAIR
Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale investments HE T B E 2R BINES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BB - BB K5R1#
Purchases of available-for-sale investments EES Ot HEZIRE
Net cash used in investing activities 12 &;E58 (FriE) REPH
Financing activities R4&E&h
Interest paid F) @z H
Repayments of obligations under finance leases RIEHESEEER
Net cash used in financing activities Bi&5;58) (FriE) RSB
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERIRESSEEBILINPE
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year £ RERIRNESE
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year ERZIRERRSS(E

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents REZHRRRESESH
Bank balances and cash #8417 RIRE1E 4
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2009
HKS 818

4,366,859
(8,/465)

4,358,394

18,930
0
(70,949)

4,268,466
9,591,693

13,860,159

13,860,159

2008
HKS 818

1,607,612
(30,637)

1,576,975

313,218
5,500,000
(137,596)

(7,000,000)

(1,324,378)

245,928
9,345,765

9,591,693

9,591,693
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

1 GENERAL
The Institute is registered under the Hong Kong Institute of Architects Incorporation Ordinance for the general
advancement of Civil Architecture and for promoting and facilitating the acquisition of the knowledge of the various Arts
and Sciences connected therewith.

The principal activities of the Institute are holding of meetings, lectures, examinations, exhibitions and competitions and
similar activities. The activities of the subsidiary are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

The address of its registered office is 19/F, 1 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

2 THE ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") that are relevant to its operations and
effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 April 2008. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised
HKFRSs did not result in substantial changes to the Group's accounting policies and amounts reported for the current
year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these new
HKFRS would have a material impact on its results of operations and financial position.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards that have
significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next
year are discussed in note 25.

3 EABEER
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Institute and entities controlled
by the Institute (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Institute has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All significant intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

(d) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

In the Institute's balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Institute on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

3 EASEBEER (&)
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Institute has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

Investments in associated companies are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of associates
are accounted for by the Institute on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

The equity method of accounting for the associates is not adopted as the accounts of associates are not available.
(f) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
values, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 25%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets
or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair values using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

(h) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in income and expenditure account.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, amount due from subsidiary, bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated or not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active marketandwhose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:
significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period and observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a balance aforesaid
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in equity. For available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are generally classified into other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including other payables and obligations under finance leases) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Institute are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(i) Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Animpairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the tangible and intangible assets is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

(j) Inventories
Inventories consist mainly of standard contract forms, Standard Form of Building Contract, Form of Tender which are
stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes direct costs of purchases and incidental costs in
bringing the inventory to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is based on anticipated selling
price less all further costs to be incurred prior to sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Leasing

a

-

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated income and expenditure account on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease
or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the consolidated income and expenditure account on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expenses over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance costs in the income and expenditure account in the
period which they are incurred.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m)Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

i) Members' entrance and subscription fees are recognised to the extent of cash received. Annual subscription fees
are accrued on a time basis.

ii) Lecture and examination fees are recognised when the lecture and the examination are held.

iii) Revenue from sales of publications and advertisement is recognised when the publications are sold and
advertisements are published.

iv) Revenue from exhibitions and other functions are recognised when the exhibitions and the functions are held.

v) Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.
vi) Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts

through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount.

vii) Sales of securities are recognised on a trade-date basis when contracts are executed.

viii)Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when the goods are delivered and title has passed.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Taxation
The Institute has been granted exemption from Hong Kong Profits Tax by the Inland Revenue Department for its excess
of income over expenditure in prior years. The Council believes that the exemptions will continue to be granted
accordingly no provision for Profits Tax has been made.

Income tax expenses represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary difference arising on investments in subsidiaries and

interests in associate and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

3 EXBEEXR (&)

(n) $I8
ABEZERFEHB RN LFERABESZHIVEASHUESBAER - BSE2HE - KSEEEEHR » RItIESEER
BROYEE -

RIEFASIEAHEERERELERER -

ERRRBLDEASZSHBAINTERRRAFEE < ERREFENDRINBNEANAT - WHBREAEEER
MFEFERRATIVBINARSZHIES - I EENERARIRRIIVACES - AEBORIHREEE - 5&IG
SHERAAT CERIRESE -

BEERBUEDRAMBREANEEREERBERARSIEERRBANCBEREME CEE - WMEEEEREE
AR - BARREEESENMERERNEEE2ER - MBETREEENRIKRTERBRIVSERRRF - T
ALUEHTIRERER GRS - SEREERR—BH BRI AT EESIEN RS GEHESHEMN
PRBEBSEMEEREEMSIH  ATSERIXSEERES -

BEERBESEDRINBATCRERMENIRARFAERCHEGEECERREHEAMED - IS AEBERE
NEHEREEPOREFEFNSRIUBRIARRPEZ BRI
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Taxation (continued)
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

(o) Foreign currencies
In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions.

At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in the income statement in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. [Hong Kong dollars]) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate
component of equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

3 EASEER (&)
(n) BIR (47)
EERBEEECRBESREE/EB R - WHOETATEBE ENERRBANOZBADDEENZE -

EERBDZEHRAENEERBINGEBCHRAAERKACHEBENRRBYF MASE - ELRBSHE
A BmEK - EEREEIBISI ARANERCIES - HEERBNSIEBARGDRIE -

@ g%@%@%ﬂ%ﬁ@Zﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬂ% DR TEELIINC B (INE) ETHRZRIZEB ZEFUSE IR
B BINTBEMEEBNERRECE) 508k °
REBED - LUNSSHEC EBBEBRIEE B CEREHMRE - LUNBCBELRASHECFEBBEE S EHRE -
REEEBEERENRESEBEEL < ERZRINAREBRRET -
M2IFEHBREMS  AEBRIINEBCEERGE (BELRET) DERMA/BEBIRTERUBITER - W

ARBEXES (BEERES) REBHTIIERRE  HEBERDREKE  ALIRZEBCERRSE - ELXER
Z8 (W8) BERERUEBRAAEEERRER - CIERERINBINEDESHINBMERNTER -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Government grants
A government grant is recognised as other revenue, when there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching with it and the right to receive is established.

Grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs they are intended to compensate.

(q) Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the ability to control, directly or indirectly, the
party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or
where the Group and the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may
be individuals (being members of key management personnel, significant shareholders and/or their close family
members) or entities and include entities which are controlled or under the significant influence of related parties of
the Group where those parties are individuals, and post-employment benefit plans which are for the benefit of
employees of the Group or of any entity that is a related party of the Group.

(r) Employee benefits
(i) Pension obligations
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans, including the mandatory provident fund as required under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in the income and
expenditure account as incurred.

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

EXEFHBR (&)
(p) ERFIHHEN
BURHEIIR O S BREAEB R SR R IIEER] - EBREAUIA
SR BEINBUTHEED - IREEREATRNIEEHERANFHENEL - WIRBRRERBAR

(9) BBEATL
= BN - HIATRREFRAEEBEE - SAEBUEEIFETHNZATAINZATOUBEREER
REEDBHEZEEATET) RZIR - XPAEERIATAZAERATEENEATE - BEALTEEES
AL BIEBEBAER /FEHERZE) SBE  UBERASEEIENER A LTRSS AEATENEEE -
URRASEHRAEEBHENTOERNESNA MR N2 EETRBFISTE

(r) ESEF
() BARTEFFE
REHFURIKNEE (BIEEB GREIEABTSIEIRR) PTRECRTIMARE) 2HRDRAEEEFUZHEL
TEBmak PR -

(D EEE=RE
BEEHFREN  TRERZERESD - AEBREEBEB LHEERRECRBMAELNFRCLFTE/BIE
BB -

BECHRBRRERIIMEES - ERRELANRRIL -
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4 TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE

EXRBREMA
Group A&EE
2009 2008
HKS &8 HKS B 18
Turnover &2%£%28
Members' subscription and entrance fees @20 2BRERAZE 6,122,225 5,640,460
Corporate membership fee ROBECEE 534,950 510,625
Functions income [Note 51 GBI A (Hy5EH) 7,180,285 3,464,046
Lecture and examination fees Z:15EME B Z5EH 2,904,220 2,689,740
Rental income from investment property #8422 FEIA 460,975 198,000
Sales of Architects Practices Directory f2EEETE AT 2MINE 426,200 409,800
Sales of publications and advertisements EDRIG R ESHE 79418 105,554
Sponsor from corporate member N2 S EER) 80,000 320,000
17,788,273 13,338,225
Other revenue EAR A
Arbitrators {1 E 10,000 12,000
Administrative charge {TEE A 3,415 30,953
Bank interest income $R{FAISUA 18,930 191,693
Gain on arising from changes in fair value of investment property & &EFHERA 0 3,850,000
HKIA credit card rebate commissions &8 E2 /S A -~0)(H 37,317 37,403
Interest income on certificates of deposit ZRBEHIFI RULA 0 121,525
Rental income of display space PEFIIZHIFRTUIA 0 39,000
Sales of souvenirs e =mHE 7.355 1,236
Sundry income FEIBUA 237,934 153,176
Web recruit package fEZEBEEE SN 56,250 8,250
371,201 4445,236
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5 FUNCTIONS INCOME AND COSTS
BERARER

Receipts and expenses relating to various functions held during the year were as follows: -

RERSBITSREBIMARBRU T —

Group A&EE
Income WA Expenses szt 2009 2008
HKS & HKS & HKS B HKS &
50th Anniversary Celebration A+ EFEIEED 0 O 0 200
50th Anniversary Exhibition A+EFEEE 0 0 (408)
Academic Qualification Assessment S2IAAREEZ 6,000 (16 OOO) (10,000) 6,000
A Century of Architecture in Hong Kong /88 HF 2% 0 (4,698) (4,698) (3,870)
Architecture Tour 2522738 75,950 (110,759) (34,809) 60,366
Annual Awards EF 434215
2006 0 0 0 12,458
2007 460,190 (330,866) 129,324 0
Annual Awards Publication 2007
2007 FEFFRRIBEFE 0 (196,242) (196,242) 0
Annual Ball/Dinner BIFEE2 /%2
2005 0 (1,060) (1,060) 0
2007 0 0 0 37,249
2008 1,323,368 (872,690) 450,678 0
Annual Golf Day BFE&mAIKE
2006 0 0 0 (158,420)
2007 0 0 0 (11,478)
2008 611,344 (357, 51 2) 253,832 0
APEC Architects S X AE S AR ZEEN 2,600 (41,078) (38,478) 4,400
ARCASIA function DI REN RS S8
2007 0 0 (18,768)
2008 0 (18,344) (18,344) 0
Asia Cultural Co-operation Forum ZolisZ{t S1EmIE
2006 0 0 0 (7,435)
Assessment & Admission of Affiliates BfB 2 S A\ = E3857 0 0 0 41,425
Best Paper Award fxEE S48 0 (6,200) (6,200) (6,390)
Biennale Architecture Z2EEEEF R
Venice Biennale 2006 2006 E[EHTiRE TR 0 (10,653) (10,653) (408)
HK&SZ Bi-city Biennale 2007 2007FE&ERIIE TR 0 0 0 (210)
Venice Biennale 2008 2008 Fi[EHTRERLETFE 1,869,000 (2,954,340) (1,085,340) 0
Response Exhibition 2006
2006 EEHTRRE TR - & B0ER 0 0 0 (7,557)
Response Exhibition 2008
2008FFEHTIRERE TR - SBOER 230,000 (230,000) 0 0
Gala Dinner 2008 BEMMERE TR - HRIRE 180,581 (180,581) 0 0
Business Promotion Committee 2% HEESE S 0 (21,846) (21,846) 0
CAA Conference T 2RI 22 5% 0 0 0 (21.417)
Coalition of Professional Services &8 82493 0 (8,000) (8,000) (20,404)
Courtesy Visit 555
Beijing LR 89,800 (107,635) (17,835) 0
Guangzhou BN 0 (16) (16) 0
Community Development Committee Project (CDC)
tEhEEESEH 0 (2,072) (2,072) (12,161)
Competition 2&FHKGTHE 0 (1,404) (1,404) 0
Contract and Dispute Resolution Committee
RESHEMDTERSHESS 8,065 (1,370) 6,695 22,455
Construction Project Management Professionals
BEEEEEEEANS 0 (15,908) (15,908) (15,506)
Corporate Events A TES) 180,000 (216,280) (36,280) 38,240
c/f 5,036,898 (5,705,554) (668,656) (61,638)
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5 FUNCTIONS INCOME AND COSTS (continued)
BEWNARER (&)

Group A&EE
Income U Expenses szt 2009 2008
HKS S&#E HKS & HE HKS & HKS B8
b/f 5,036,898 (5,705,554) (668,656) (61,638)
CPD Seminars and Events FFEH R -BE LGS 97,360 (32,193) 65,167 14,132
Dragon Boat and others BEf18 & HAS &) 0 (78,640) (78,640) (105,320)
Education and career expo expenses # & MG EE2 SR
2008 0 (80) (80) (57,315)
2009 0 (62,353) (62,353) 0
Environment & Sustainable Development BB & OliF &5 @ 0 0 0 (1,006)
General Activity —fi% 5 D 13,891 (59,481) (45,590) (6,982)
Green Tour #iB2ERE
2007 0 0 0 2,947
2008 330,310 (385,902) (55,592) 0
Heritage and Conservation ) RO ERA 0 (37) (37) (1,015)
HKIA Conference &8 2 EEIB25HE 1,108,826 (774,736) 334,090 0
HKIA Corporate Membership &82EBMNESN TS EDEE 0 0 0 (36,595)
HKU Visitation 2007 2007 &8 K22 4MiR5H 0 (310) (310) (10,491)
Hong Kong / Shenzhen Biennale of Urbanism and Architecture 2007
2007FE B/ e R R e fE 0 (137,749) (137,749) (6,956)
Joint Professional Sport Activity B 5282 B 5 ED 11,900 (8,038) 3,862 (16,560)
Kai Tak Urban Design Competition BUEBIMEREEE 0 0 0 (6,483)
Legal and Finance Committee JAERMAMBFEES 1,650 (700) 950 0
Mainland membership dinner Rt 2SR E 0 0 0 (13,200)
Mutual Recognition with Mainland RIIE 8 B3R
2006 0 0 0 (4,000)
2007 0 0 0 60,243
2008 332,000 (242,807) 89,193 (1,559)
My Heart My Home E&3HER 0 0 0 (800)
New Member Welcoming Event Hr2S350#716 &) 0 (19,352) (19,352) (42,510)
Official trips to Mainland for meetings & ZE 0 (9914) (9914) (13,179)
Overseas Excursion 2007 2007E89 226 0 0 0 (22,191)
Planning & Lands Committee {2 8| RIHEE S 0 (300) (300) (357)
Practice Issues Committee BUJ/ N ESHESHEES 0 (3378) (3.378) 0
Professional Induction Workshop EREE0& 5| 74,000 (14,328) 59,672 0
Quality Building Awards {EE R A5 0 (6,206) (6,206) 0
Receiving Mainland Guests sR{GAMER 0 (12,900) (12,900) 0
Seminar, Visits & Exhibitions at Mainland RIIHETE « SHRREE 8,972 (3,947) 5,025 (880)
Shanghai International Creative Industry Week
FEERRIR T ZEET] 81,078 0 81,078 (81,078)
Small Practices Committee /\ B2 BEHEER 0 0 0 (1,727)
Special General Meeting 57 &5% 0 0 0 (14,786)
Student & Graduate Member Committee
BAREXLESESES 0 0 0 (752)
Subscriptions to professional bodies B¥XEESE 0 (120,250) (120,250) (121,519)
Sustainable Architecture Design Student Awards
O BRERFIS 2 81,000 (72,809) 8,191 0
Technical Support Committee 1Tz iB HZES 2,600 (1,708) 892 0
c/f 7,180,485 (7,753,672) (573,187) (551,576)
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5 FUNCTIONS INCOME AND COSTS (continued)
BEWNARER (&)

Group A&EH

Income LA Expenses szt 2009 2008

HKS B HKS B HKS B HKS B

b/f 7,180,485 (7,753,672) (573,187) (551,576)

UDA Symposium before HKIA Conference 0 (1,500) (1,500) 0
UIA BIBSR BT HE

Overseas Meeting B9 NG5 0 (17,815) (17,815) (17,336)

Web Site Launching #BI5EE) 0 (2,936) (2,936) (2,102)

Work Programme - "Architecture for All' [2 AR ] T{E/NE  (200) (200) (400) (460)

Venice Biennale Architecture B HTE TR
YAA Emerging Hong Kong Young Architects Publication

WS BETRERESFE 0 0 0 1,240
Young Architects Awards SH 26048

2004 0 0 0 (200)

2008 0 (284) (284) 0
YAC EFRENEESR

Joint Professional Activity & B %58) 0 (6,512) 6,512) (13,460)
Young Architect Project Fund - STEP

SEREMBEEES- [BSEE ) 0 (17,276) (17,276) (85,431)

7,180,285 (7,800,195) (619,910) (669,325)

6 EMPLOYMENT COSTS

EBERA
Group A&
2009 2008
HKS B HKS &
Salaries and allowances ¥+ & 286 3,390,238 3,316,997
Provident fund contribution s8fE#tF 152,645 263,404
Staff messing and welfare 8 TIX & & T8F! 21,884 11,638

3,564,767 3,592,039

7 COUNCILS' REMUNERATION
BEME

No remuneration was paid or payable to the Council in respect of their services to the Group during the year (2008 : Nil).

AEERHEMIESRFAOAEBRHNBRBEMOESSHREUME - CS5/\F : )
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8 OTHER OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

HMEERITHAX
Group A&

2009 2008
HKS B HKS &8
Advertising &8 2,583 17,712
Air conditioning charges 2E58& 41,227 43,824
Auditors' remuneration 2 2ETE A 41,000 41,000
Agency fee {12 E 3,760 4,294
Bank charges and credit card commission $8{7E B R IEFRSHEE 90,631 77,798
Books and magazines ZEEF0%E5 41,114 41,829
Building management fee XESIEE 200,986 187,000
Business registration fee BESLE 450 5,650
Cleaning /&8 1,096 1,806
Congress expenses [Note 10] @&Fsz [M#%10] 0 3,797
Consultancy fees gBRSE A 60,000 309,778
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment #)%, =152 1E 233,724 254,858
Electricity and telephone 8& R E55E 77876 73,087
Membership fee write-off & &5+84 167,450 105,890
Finance lease interest MEMRSEF R 3,785 3,884
Insurance =62 145,521 146,773
Legal and professional fees ;&2 RS 111,613 60,882
Management visit to Beijing office B2 A\Fehit RIFE 23,345 82,113
Postage, printing and stationery 25 « E)RIFAICE 230,991 332,665
Quarterly general meeting and working meeting expenses ZE &0 T F2EH>2 138,833 163,296
Rent and rates fA& & Z=8l) 1,008,487 672,671
Repairs and maintenance #SFRES 23,810 30,625
Sponsorship &EN& 60,875 22,000
Stamp duty EJ7E#R 3,762 0
Sundry expenses ¥ 34,993 48,533
Survey and research SEZERHHR 517 31,153
Website programming, IT support and upgrading #8USI12T58 5T, ITSTIBAIFHR 442,225 41,574

3,190,654 2,804,492
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TAXATION
RE

The tax credit/(charge) comprises: FRIBED)/(RIESZ H)EIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax &8 FE# :

Current year KEE

Overprovision in prior years B{EFE (#1858

Deferred tax credit/(charge) [Note 20] BAERIBERIBEED)/(S2H) (MF5£20)

Group A&EB
2009 2008
HKSE#E HKS&H#E
(68,657) (27,942)
20,956 0
(47,701) (27,942)
57 (2,377)
(47,644) (30,319)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2008 : 17.5%) on estimated assessable profits for the year.

EBNERDMAFEGESERRENIZ 165% (20084 : 165%) 5t& -

The tax credit/(charge) for the year can be reconciled to the operating surplus/(deficit) before taxation per the

consolidated income and expenditure account as follows:

FRZREED,/ (RESE) BFSWARSHERCHFRAEERR (BR) WERUT :

Operating surplus/(deficit) before taxation IRRBIS B & E4/(F18)

Tax credit/(charge) of Hong Kong Profit Tax rate of 16.5% (2008 : 17.5%)
RIBBO/(RIESZH): FBNERZ16.5% (2008 : 17.5%)

Decrease in opening deferred tax liability resulting from decrease in applicable tax rate
MARFEL HDIRLERIEIZE

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose “NEINFRSZ HEVRFE S/
Effect of zero tax rate of tax exempted institution BRHEHEREAR 2
Overprovision in prior years B FEEEBER

\\

Tax credit/(charge) for the year FERIBEQ)/(FRIEZH)

CONGRESS EXPENSES
TR

Seminar in Chengdou S &SI
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Group A&EE
2009 2008
HKS B HKS &g
2,417,839 5,590,280
(398,944) (978,299)
2,299 0
427 678,272
327,618 269,708
20,956 0
(47,644) (30,319)
Group A&
2009 2008
HKS B HKS &g
0 3,797
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
YD, RS B 5%

Group AR&EE
Furniture,
fixtures,
Investment Leasehold and office
property improvements equipment Total
&Rith, FE
KREYZE HENEST1E RFQRRE 5t
HKS &S HKS &S HKSEHE HKS B
Cost or valuation R g} {&{&
At 1 April 2007 1220074818 3,650,000 2,302,207 1,388,095 7,340,302
Additions /R"E 0 31,860 105,736 137,596

Net increase in fair value recognised in the
consolidated income and expenditure account

RO RmMIEIE N EE 3,850,000 0 0 3,850,000
At 31 March 2008 7220084343318 7,500,000 2,334,067 1,493,831 11,327,898
Additions A E 0 0 70,949 70,949
At 31 March 2009 1320092353318 7500000 2334067 1564780 11398847
Depreciation {F&
At 1 April 2007 1220074818 0 2,039,385 1,101,594 3,140,979
Provided for the year FE sz H 0 88,185 166,673 254,858
At 31 March 2008 220084343318 0 2,127,570 1,268,267 3,395,837
Provided for the year FEE sz H 0 78,355 155,369 233,724
At31March 2009 R2009F38318 0 2205925 1423636 _ 3629561
Carrying values BRE{&
At 31 March 2009 /220094343318 7,500,000 128,142 141,144 7,769,286
At 31 March 2008 220084343318 7,500,000 206,497 225,564 7,932,061

The carrying values of investment properties held by the Group as at the balance sheet date comprised:

RATHREYROVERSHREED T T

2009 2008
HKS B HKS B
In Hong Kong held on: Leases of over 50 years

REBFE « i+ EE 7,500,000 7,500,000

The Group's investment property is held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes is
measured using the fair value model and is classified and accounted for as investment property.
BENERREASREHEEXSELRNAT R, NEEAREREC TR, NEEYNIZIEE BAVATED -
BREVENVEEBES B SRHEEE BB ANGEE
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
W=, BB R&1E (#)

The fair value of the Group's investment property at 31 March 2009 have been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on 2 November 2007 by RHL Appraisal Ltd., who is member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Valuers, and has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. The valuation, which conforms to the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standards on Properties, was
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.
ANTGERENER_BENF=_B=1T—BNAVELHZEBASHNHS2SSEXRNTHEELSRAIVEEMERE
FNTHEEEBRAIESHERER - AN B YRR ELYEGECKR - 2EETCSEBRSM22 Y
(GERE - REZHLMERINRBHNDSIREMERE -

At the balance sheet date, the net book value of furniture, fixtures and equipment held under finance leases amounted
to Nil (2008 : HK$41,087).
RIEED @ DRERSRHFENEM - EERMAZRIECE@FERS BT (CES/\F  41,08787T)

Institute A2&

Furniture,
fixtures,
Leasehold and office
improvements  equipment Total
&, 2E
HENSTE RPFRAREE Rt
HKS B HKS B HKS &
Cost A
At 1 April 2007 1220074818 2,234,607 1,373,390 3,607,997
Additions A& 31,860 105,736 137,596
At 31 March 2008 22008438318 2,266,467 1,479,126 3,745,593
Additions A& 0 70,949 70,949
At 31 March 2009 58200938318 2266467 1550075 3816542
Depreciation (&
At 1 April 2007 1220074818 2,010,585 1,091,722 3,102,307
Provided for the year FZ 57 H 74,665 165,062 239,727
At 31 March 2008 22008438318 2,085,250 1,256,784 3,342,034
Provided for the year FZ sz H 64,835 153,758 218,593
At 31 March 2009 522009433318 2150085 1410542 3,560,627
Carrying values BRE{&
At 31 March 2009 22009438318 116,382 139,533 255,915
At 31 March 2008 22008438318 181,217 222,342 403,559

At the balance sheet date, the net book value of furniture, fixtures and equipment held under finance leases amounted
to Nil (2008 : HK$41,087).
RIEED @ DRERSRHFENEM - EERMAZRIECE@FERS BT (CES/\F  41,08787T)
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12

13

14

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY

RITEAINRE
Institute ABE
2009 2008
HKSEHE HKS B
Unlisted shares, at cost 3k O30, B2AAEt 2 2
Amount due from subsidiary [Note] MY/ D ENEERIB[MIEE] 1,508,957 1,509,657

1,508,959 1,509,659

Note: The amount is interest free, unsecured and without fixed repayment terms.

Mist : ZRBRRBEMR @ WHEEPRAKETERTH -

Particulars of the subsidiay at 31 March 2009 are as follows:
WEBAINR_BENF=_S=—1T—8B80FE0 :

Percentage of
issued share

Place of Issued and fully capital held by Principal

Name of subsidiary incorporation paid up share capital the Institute activities
MBS TE WIS ERTRFE FEREmBI F2EF
HKIA Services Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares 100%  Investment
SEREMBERBERNT B of HK$1 each holding
REBREREE 1T ERERE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
KRB N TR

The associated company, Professional Green Building Council Limited, is a company incorporated in Hong Kong under
the Companies Ordinance with limited liability by guarantee. It's principal activities are conducting collaborative research
and public research results on local and global developments of green building, organizing researches seminars and
training courses in green building design and technology and advising the government on the formulation, setting up
and monitoring of a local green building labelling scheme.

WENT - MREZRBRESERAT - BREATIRG - UBERONESBEMNIUNBRETAT - ER2EHEH
ERMAMRERRORBYEEETSERRRARMRLER - BREERCEBYRSIRMOHATENS RISHIR
2 URMRIIREESAMROERYIRES 8 - OBUTRHEESR

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
JHHECRE
Group & Institute AEBRARS
2009 2008
HKS B HKS B
Unlisted equity securities, at fair value
FEMRENYE 6,563,624 7146914
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Institute AB=
2009 2008
HKS & HKS B 18
2,007,411 3,547,780
0 0
105 2,173
892,005 1,550,875
250,024 250,024

B2 REMBIR
Group A&EH

2009 2008
HKS &8 HKS &8
Account receivables FEUTEE S8R 2,007,411 3,547,780
Rental receivables FEINFAE 111,205 0
Interest receivable FEUFI = 105 2173
Deposits and prepayments FE{J1%<E 990,292 1,569,999
Other receivables EA1FEIREBRR 250,024 250,024
3,359,037 5,369,976

3,149,545 5,350,852

The aging analysis of trade and other receivables at the date of the statement of financial position that are not considered

to be impaired is as follows:

IREGFFIN IR B AR R ESR A EAEURIBEIRE AT T

Group A&EH
2009 2008
HKS B HKSE 1S
1 to 3 months past due & HBBE1BESE3IEBH 908,981 1,281,435

Institute A2
2009 2008
HKS B HKSE 18

908,981 1,281,435

Receivables that were past due but nor impaired relate to a number of independent parties that have a good track record
with the Group and Institute. Based on past experience, management is of the opinion that no provision for impairement
is necessary in respeect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group and the Institute do not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements

over theses balances.

EafBIEREGENENRERAEEZB/URCHREBHBIISAEE - REMUTNIEE - 828R R - BRER
ESWHESA#E) - MAEEGHRIDHRARTZENG - RILHRMSLISHI BRIERRS - I%lﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁfL%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ

(ETHERss -

BANK BALANCES
RTREER

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0.01% to 0.5% (2008 : 0.01% to 2.25%) per annum.

RITIBHRIEHBTEMNZRB0.01 BXE0.5 EB5tR (ZSB/\F : 0.01 BFE2.25 BFFIR)
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17 GENERAL RESERVES

—REERE
Group & Institute
AEERAEE
2009 2008

HKS & HKSE 8

Balance of donation for Radio Television Hong Kong programs production

EBEOHNERIFERGH 456,897 456,897
HKIA Funds for Public Conferences Seminars & Exhibitions in 1996
1996 FHEAMEE - BNE - RECHANESEREMNBSET 200,000 200,000
Donation for Public Conference, Seminar, Exhibition, Research and Competition
NRBE -~ 52 - BE - R EET 150,000 150,000
Balance of donation from Mr. Dennis Lau Wing Kwong in 1994
1994 FRIRBEREIBRARR 0 67,248
Balance of donation from Mr. Stephen Poon in 1995
1995 EARERLIBNERTR 11,608 25,808

818,505 899,953

18 RESERVES

B
Investment
Institute X2 revaluation Retained
reserves surplus Total
BIGRER RERER 1R5t
HKS B8 HKS B8 HKS B8
At 1 April 2007 1220074818 (8,962) 18,463,719 18,454,757

Surplus arising from revaluation of available-for-sale investments

JHHECRES LR 8,962 0 8,962
Released on disposal of available-for-sale investments
HETHBERERED 146914 0 146,914
Surplus for the year FEF & 0 1,541,193 1,541,193
At 31 March 2008 1220082E3H31H 146,914 20,004912 20,151,826

Loss arising from revaluation of available-for-sale investments

JHBECKRESHBIE (583,290) 0 (583,290)
Surplus for the year FEF &8 0 1,985,563 1,985,563
At 31 March 2009 22009535318 (436,376) 21,990,475 21,554,099
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OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
RERERE

Group & Institute AEBRAZRE

Amounts payable under finance leases:
NEHESER MNEUR
Within one year —&FR
After one year but within two years —FEEMF 2 &
After two years but within five years it E2 52

Less if: Future finance charges R RRIEEH

Present value of lease obligations HE&EIRE

Less i@: Amount due within one year shown
under current liabilities

RI—FRIBEIRIREEE)

Amount due after one year IR—a& T 25

Minimum lease  Present value of minimum

payments lease payments
RIEEZIIR RIEEZTREVIRE

2009 2008 2009 2008
HKS B HKS B HKS B HKS B
28,656 33,432 25,070 29,249
4,776 33,432 4,179 29,249
0 5572 0 4,875
33,432 72,436 29,249 63,373
(4,183) (9,063) N/A N/A
29,249 63,373 29,249 63,373
(25,070) (29,249)

4,179 34,124

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its furniture, fixtures and office equipment under finance leases. The lease
terms are 4 to 5 years (2008 : 4 to 5 year). Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance leases are fixed at
respective contract dates was 3% (2008 : 3%) . These leases have no terms of renewal or purchase options and escalation

clauses.

AEBCHRRUMBHENEEE TEERRKR - BN F4E5F (TFH/\F : 4255F)
° BEIEAASHERRR - MEBNEBERRFAEET KR

RIERISI KB HSIERIE (ZFF/\F : 3B)

° PTEMBFHEREE < BEEA

The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors' charge over the leased assets.

AEBREESEEDBEHEANEEEENEFLR -

All lease obligations are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

PTEMEAIYE] BEEEMRE - WEMKREEIRE] UL - FTEHEAREMBEIES -
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20 DEFERRED TAXATION

The deferred tax assets (Iiabilities) recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior years are as follows:
TRIEAREBERBAERSTEMERCTZELREEER (B8E) REEEEEH :

Accelerated tax

Group AR&EE depreciation
IIRREFE

HKS &

At 1 April 2007 1220074818 (37,839)
Credited/(Charged) to income and expenditure account B A~ (308) WARSZHR (2,377)
At 31 March 2008 22008%3H318 (40,216)
Effect of change in tax rate AR B) 2/ & 2,299
Credited/(Charged) to income and expenditure account 8 A/ (08) WA KSzHTT (2,242)
At 31 March 2009 82009538318 (40,159)

21 OTHER PAYABLES

HEI R
Group KA&E Institute X 2E
2009 2008 2009 2008
HKS & s HKS &8 HKS & HKS &8
Deposits and receipts in advance 1 & B RIS 1,033,284 1,288,340 1,033,284 1,288,340
Rental deposits received 1% 143,520 73,050 0 0
Accruals FESTIEE 44,000 234,261 38,000 228,261
Other payables E & IRFR 135,809 10,672 135,809 10,672

1,356,613 1,606,323 1,207,093 1,527,273
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22 NOTES ON THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
REeRERME

Reconciliation of operating surplus to cash from operations.
PEERGIESESHDITEIIRTALPELHE -

2009 2008

HKS B HKS B HE

Operating surplus & & 2,417,839 5,590,280

Adjustments for EREIBES -

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment #)% « BB RRIEITE 233,724 254,858
Gain on arising form changes in fair value of investment property

HEWZE - BB RHRE< W 0  (3,850,000)

Interest paid YR 3,785 3,884

Interest received EUFIR (18,930) (313,218)

General reverses transfer to profit or loss E-—RFIBERE AEE CFF)) (81,448) 0

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 8&& %S ERL NS 2,554,970 1,685,804

(Increase)/Decrease in assets & (E10) B :

Inventories 5 50,660 (55,981)

Trade and other receivables FEIIE N B EL{MFEINER 2,010,939 (426,878)
Increase/(Decrease) in liabilities BE&EEN,” (&)

Other payables &I (249,710) 404,667
Cash from operations & 11518 % 4,366,359 1,607,612
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

TRMTR
(a) Categories of financial instruments
SRTRNE
Group A&E Institute X2 &
2009 2008 2009 2008

HKS B8 HKS B8 HKSB 8 HKSBH8

Financial assets £EISE
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents)

ERREERE (BERERRESE)

Trade and other receivables FEBE X B EL MBI ER 2,368,745 3,799,977 2,257,540 3,799,977
Amount due from subsidiary Hi B SEVEBRIE 0 0 1,508,957 1,509,657
Bank balances and cash $B17 RIRS#E6 13,860,159 9,591,693 12,086,900 8,136,778

16,228,904 13,391,670 15853397 13446412

Available-for-sale investments T#tHECZE 6,563,624 7146914 6,563,624 7.146,914

Financial liabilities SRA& &
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

Hit=maEce#Ems

Other payables E{IfETR 279,329 83,722 135,809 10,672
Obligations under finance leases RIEHEEE 29,249 63,373 29,249 63,373
308,578 147,095 165,058 74,045

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices
MR EIEBRERIR
The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables, amount due from subsidiary, bank
balances and cash, available-for-sale investments, other payables and obligations under finance leases. instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include. Details of these
financial market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
ANDE2T/MTESBRNESRRREMBIGR - IWEADENEBERE « RITRIVGHE - THBECRE B
MR RMEMESIET - %Sl LEFEIMBRMN RS - ST T EEERREBHERRENERRER « A
RERRAEAMBSRR ) EERREABELTER - HBRSEIGRFIN T - SREBUSERERITENER - XU
BRENEBIMETESER -
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
ERTAH (8
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices (continued)
MREREIEERERIE ()
(i) Market risk
kR B

Foreign currency risk

I EBE

The Group and the Institute are not exposed to any material foreign currency risk as majority of the transactions,
monetary assets and monetary liabilities are denominated in respective entities' functional currencies.

AEBERR S  EBEEREEEEPUIEEBEE - R NVRAZERIINEER

Interest rate risk

FIEmAE

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to variable-rate bank balances and deposits (see note 16).

The management considers the Group's exposure of the variable-rate bank balances and deposits to interest rate risk
is not significant.

REFEHRFRIFPTHGBRERBEIRTANZTAR (15116) - SEEBRBRALTNRBE B AASZ T RIBITHH
RAERARE XM RRE -

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate obligations under finance leases (see
note 19). The management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider repay the fixed-rate obligation under
finance leases when significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.
REBREENFMERSEBEH B AN RRRFEHIMNET16 - ERERBRINREE - STRBEANZRERR
4+ AEERZREREEANEANEHEESE -

Sensitivity analysis

SBEDT

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the balance sheet date.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of variable-rate bank balances and deposits at the balance sheet date
was the amount outstanding for the whole year.

DUNSURMEDIT DIRIBASE B 2 MIRRERFL © SFRIFTBBRERIORERINGE B AR ETISHRAMRS

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
operating surplus after tax for the year ended 31 March 2009 would increase/decrease by HK$95,875 (decrease/
increase by 2008 : HK$71,724). This is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate
bank balances and deposits.

fERZIZ ISR 00BE R R B TE A MO BRSRMER A - AIAEEE 22009553831 5 ILEE A RIZ 050
D#95,8758B7T (2008 : HDTUBIRI71,724870)  BRIVTIBHEG AT FET SMTAEEBHNZERE

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008.
2008 FBIDITINEIRIE FIEAEELT -
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

TRTHR (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices (continued)
AR EIEBIRRIER (48)
(i) Market risk
iz R
Other price risk
EfhFIEE ez

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk on its available-for-sale investments. Management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.
REEBCUHBECKRETBYRDERSRR - SREHBBERS—BrERINORBREECRERSKREIRTE
LR

Sensitivity analysis
BB SR

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 5% higher/lower:

&S BRRRAE S BRIZN,BD50%:

- investment revaluation reserves would increase decrease/ by approximately HK$330,000 (2008 : increase/
decrease by approximately HK$360,000) for the Group as a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-
sale investments.

- BRTHEECRERATEAER - REBCSHRERISIZI,H%I330,00087T
(2008%F: 360,000587T)

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is not necessarily representative of the inherent price risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

BEERR - FREDM A —ENEKEBINERR - DBRFRRRI-AMEFRZER

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008.

2008 F VDM INEIRIZE CEEET -
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
ZRTR (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices (continued)
MREREIEERERIE ()
(i) Credit risk
EEEME
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due.

ERRR D EHHRERRIEL AR -

The Group and the Institute have designed their credit policies with an objective to minimize its exposure to
credit risk. The Group's and the Insitiute's "Trade and other receivables" are very short term in nature and the
associated risk is minimal. Subscriptions, fees, income from examinations, seminars, courses, rental income and
other activities are collected in advance. Sale of goods is made in cash. Further quantitative data in respect of
the exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are disclosed in note 15 to the financial
statements.

REERBEXFIEARRNERERSRNEEHAR - AEE RS2 [ENRIE RAMEIR] 1B FBIFS
0H - BAEERRE) - BB - INE - EH - S - REREMEGENGERETNN - ERHEEEBRTATE
BARFY - UFBmREIEE158K=E S RINREELNERERRRNEIESEN -

For cash and bank balances, the Group's surplus cash has been deposited with a number of reputable and
creditworthy banks. Management considers that credit risk associated with the cash and bank balance is
immaterial.

REBRT RIRTHHBSEEHNRE THEREEE REANIRT - RtERERRAZDETHNEERREIR -

(iiii) Liquidity risk
RENEE R
Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available to meet liabilities as they fall due. The Group and the
Institute manage liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves. The Group and the Institute perform periodically
cash flow forecasts to monitor future cash flows. The subscription fees and entrance fees from members are
growing steadily and provide a stable source of funds to the Group and the Institute. The current financial
strength of the Group and the Institute pose no threat of liquidity to the Group and the Institute.
BRI EEEEEHITEIETHHIER - AEERSBSLURT R FERSIEASD MR - WEHETR
mFERl - DERAKIRTA - SENSENASBIETCER REEREFSRETBTENETIER - BAEE
RESENNUHE  HASERBSMERNRBIEEE
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
EMTH (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices (continued)
M EREIEERRIER (48)
(iiii) Liquidity risk
RENEE R
The maturity profile of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2009 and 2008, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was as follows:

AEBCZHEERTEBESHREB R N B SHAREIRBT AN T

Group AEE 31 March 2009
2009%3AH318
Less than Over Total carrying
1 year 1 year amount
DIR—F DIR—F REiE
HKS B HKS B’ HKS B
Other payables &R 279,329 0 279,329
Obligations under finance leases FIEHEEEE 25,070 4179 29,249
304,399 4,179 308,578
31 March 2008
2008%F3H318
Less than Over Total carrying
1 year 1 year amount
DIR—F ZH—F REiE
HKS & 18 HKS B8 HKS & 18
Other payables &R 83,722 0 83,722
Obligations under finance leases BIEHREEE 29,249 34124 63,373
112,971 34,124 147,095
Company 235 31 March 2009
2009%3AH318
Less than Over Total carrying
1 year 1 year amount
Dps—F Z—F RmiE
HKS &8 HKSE 18 HKS &8
Other payables ELIfETIR 135,809 0 135,809
Obligations under finance leases RIBHE & & 25,070 4179 29,249
160,879 4,179 165,058
31 March 2008
2008£3A31H8
Less than Over Total carrying
1 year 1 year amount
DRs—F ZIR—F EET =]
HKS & HKS B HKS B 1
Other payables EhEIT R 10,672 0 10,672
Obligations under finance leases FlEHEEE 29,249 34,124 63,373
39,921 34,124 74,045

124 The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2009



23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
TR (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices (continued)
MERAREIEERRBER (48)
(iv) Fair value estimation
NEEGE
The fair value of financial instruments trade in active market (such as available-for-sale investments) is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price.
EaEDE I RENERTEQITREECRKRE) - AAVEDEBMBMBCHBIREEBARE - AL
MEENRGHERERTNESE -

The carrying value less impairment provision of receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair
values. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the
future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

ENFRIE REVRENEEENRBERBHTSR - SEHAVENSENY - iREMNS - TREENAFERER
FAREGNRTASELALEN TEIYBHRENENRFERGS -

24 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
REEEEE
The Group and the Institute as a lessee
AEBRABSERFHEA
At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Institute had commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as follows:

BERGED  RERASEREJSHREYFEREBEFRSTEN - AARRFERB IR ERBUT ¢

Group & Institute
FEERFEE
2009 2008
HKSE#E HKS&HE

Within one year —F R 1,401,252 1,291,310
In the second to fifth years inclusive 138 _FEFERHFENR 1,686,135 3,036,046

3,087,387 4,327,356

Leases are negotiated, and monthly rentals are fixed, for terms are three years.

BRI FH—REER=F -
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24

25

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)
REHEEAE (&
The Group as a lessor
AEBERBHEA
At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants in respect of its investment properties for future
minimum lease payments which fall due as follows:
BEBED  RBAEEHRREYZEREFZS] BN - AARRSERTIRERBLO T
Group A&
2009 2008
HKS B HKS B

Within one year —&F R 492,480 21,450
In the second to fifth years inclusive 138 _FEFERHFENR 52,955 0
545,435 21,450

Operating lease arrangements represent rentals receivable by the Group for certain of its premises. Leases are negotiated
for terms ranging from two years to three years.

KEHEREBAEENENFBINCEE - BT —RECR_E=F -

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
SEHESTR A

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

SR RRERZEERIR

The methods, estimates and judgements the council used in applying the Group's accounting policies have a significant
impact on the Group's financial position and operating results. Some of the accounting policies require the Group to
apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are inherently uncertain. The critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group's accounting policies are described below.
REHSHURIMRB G RAMBSHAEB CEBRUBINNBEREAFTE - LOBSIHRFZ2ALDELBGE!
RHE > EPPRAECH - ASBSSPERCERSSHES RIS P -

(a) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
REARGIHERTE
Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts are assessed and provided based on the council's regular review of aging
analysis and evaluation of collectibility. A considerable level of judgement is exercised by the council when
assessing the credit worthiness and past collection history of each individual customers. An increase or decrease in
the above impairment loss would affect the net profit in future years.
AEERBIESSHRGH O < CHERRETNOMECFE  STERFRBIER I FSHE - BTN ESBIEC
EARTSEMERBENORERLE - STEMESRECHE - RIRNER B TOBNREDSHEIRFE B -
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25

26

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
BEHOST R (&)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

BHABEERZEERR (18)

(b) Impairment of assets
BEZG5REIE
The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the assets at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. When indication of impairment is identified, management prepares discounted
future cashflow to assess the differences between the carrying amount and value in use and provides for impairment
loss. Any change in the assumptions adopted in the profit forecasts would increase or decrease in the provision of
impairment loss and affect the Group's net asset value.
REFERZR/EDERENEERBEINEENRATR  MMECELEETORECSERE - BHERAENR - &
BERRHISIRIRTAUNGIREEREREBEWE TRESRBERE - EENBASAMERC BRRELRITTEEFIE
MR BEGERE R EAEECEETE

(c) Depreciation
wE
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives. The Group
reviews annually the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimation.
Y% - MBRRBRECHTERERAEHGSI IERERSE - AEBGFRVEECTEATHRENGEER (W
B) o LRI GEIBTTEAEE) - BRBEFCITER T HHE -

(d) Valuation of investment property
REYZES1E
As described in note 11, the investment properties were revalued by independent professional valuers on a market
value basis at each balance sheet date. Such valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results. Any increase or decrease in the valuations would affect
the Group's results in future years.
WHTET11PTHL - REVFDHBIEXLEMNREESBERORRTUHEREESHGE - BEGLEBELRES TREE
7 WEPDE HERNRENSHERBREEAER - SHEBSTTUBNHEORFERNATGRREEIFEE -

(e) Provision for inventories
FERHE
The Group review the carrying amounts of the inventories at each balance sheet date to determine whether the
inventories are carried at lower of cost and net realisable value as in accordance with accounting policy set out in
note 3(j). Management estimates the net realisable value based on current market situation and historical experience
on similar inventories. Any change in the assumptions would increase or decrease the amount of inventories write-
down or the related reversals of write-down and affect the Group's net asset value.
RE[BED » AEEPRFEEESRBSSHEPERUES()URNARTEIRFEMS P BIEB IR - BRIGETD
SEERESRFTRRBEDERLIESSERMIED - FTEA RS DR TEEIE ISR EEMIR < BIERK
HAR MR OD R EAEBCEEFE -

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
LRHF

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.
—BBBFEREDBRUANTSATRS -

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2009

127






DIRECTORS' REPORT
The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2009 are set out in the income statement on page 5 of the annual
report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company during the year are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Lu Yuen Cheung, Ronald (resigned on 9/3/2009) Ms. Kwong Sum Yee, Anna (appointed on 9/3/2009)
Mr. Lam Kwong Ki (resigned on 9/3/2009) Ms. Chow Wai Lee (appointed on 9/3/2009)
Mr. Hui Man Bock, Bernard (resigned on 9/3/2009) Mr. Wong Kam Sing (appointed on 9/3/2009)

There being no provision in the Company's Articles of Association for retirement of directors, all directors continue in office.

ETBRS
ESSMARSANTEE _SBNE=P=1+ - DULFECREEREBROUBES -

EBXH
AATNEBLIRRELY -

FERBRGHIR
AADBE_BBNE=R=+ DL EETEEBRAFRENTASE -

SR IEBRERS -

E R NS B
AATRENZIE - B RREREEED BRI HRRIEEN -

g5

ANIRFERNRHEARSOHILESR

STTELE EHTBHIA2009F3398 Epa/)\E ZEBHR2009F3898
MREIES A EHTH 8 AR2009F3398 [EEng/ )8 FTBEAR2009F3F9B8
STt EHTH 8 AR2009F3398 HiBE5E FTBEAR2009F3F9B8

RENDEMEEMRIPIEBHESIINRE - IEEFH]ES(T -
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or its holding company was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or its holding company, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Katon CPA Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

EERERGHIELD

REBONENTARR - AN IRETERATEETEANTES EENSEHEEA RS BB -
EEEH

RENDERS D BU AR AL T2 2R OBAB LB SR RTUSEME NBEZEASH -
BARD REZZH

AAGREERNIRFREOHBRESREIIEOARY - HEARTESTEEAALTRTTEMEABRBZRDUES
MiS °

% EED
AATVEESEEERGHATERATEY - BSESSE - ERMEZTERARAT LM -

On behalf of the Board
EEEEm

7,

Director

BE5

Hong Kong, 24 September 2009
&8, 20098985248
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HKIA SERVICES LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of HKIA Services Limited set out on pages 5 to 19, which comprise the balance sheet
as at 31 March 2009, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors' responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

BUZEEIRS - EERENSSRFTRLATERRE

SEREMNBZRBETRADY

(REBEMRIILERAT)

ABE (T8 [5%) ) CENBREREEE N ESERENSSRBERATINUBRE - UEUBRREFAE_

SENF=R=T—"HBNEEEEXREGEABILFTENELR - ERBHRNREAER - LREZSEHEREAZ REMNLE
B

EENUBBRRRAENTE

EFRETRREBISTNASTRNNTBUBBRSEIRSE (RIEM) REBRE  RIEREEMPSHIRZSFHHER
*® - SEIEEBRET  BfRkiEERREBERAEMPESMIIRYFERREEIFIA LA - u@%%ﬁﬁT@ﬁ$Fmﬁimﬁﬁ
EWHEAEREL  BENEREENS R - URIEBERIFEERSEHES! -

BMBETHRE
SENETLREESNBDNUSUBRXIFLES « LRSS (DDER) £ 141 HREEORBRERS - TEE0H
% - BSHEARARSONSAENA LEERAETIET -

SEEHREBSEEAS RN (BB ER)) ETBRIF - BERRIZREFETERRERE - WREIRNTES - UGS
BRENMBRRES MBITOERBEREL -
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 March 2009 and of
its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BHHRWTIEFEUENSBYBRAMBTR/RKEBERNNVESIRE - IEENESIVRINESTENAE - 15V SBIEREE
FIBRMEBYBRRFBEABRELNER - ETOZSARE - St TREIETRBREEMNPEHIIRYBRES
BEEIA BRI - ISREHEENSEEHES - BUFREEBHINEZRIENEERERER - BTN EETBESMRBNSSIERY
SRMRATELVESHEEI G - DURSTBI RV ERIRO T -

BEBE - SEMESHNBEMEEERRNEEHNRSSNENERRIHER -

=8
EERRUBBREKRR (EBUBRSHER) EENANMRK BRATR_SFSFNF=R=T—HB0O0ERRR BQTH
EFBIEZFNERMIREAE - WELKREE (LIRH) HRBRTEEERE -

B@Q"\ PRSI —

Katon CPA Limited ZEIRSEENTBERAT

Certified Public Accountants $IZEZ5HED

Hong Kong &7&

Date: 24 September 2009 BH: 2009895248

Lee Kit Wah Z=f¢2E

Practising Certificate number P1453 #1282 550% P1453
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INCOME STATEMENT
BERK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009
BE_SSENF=R=1—8BLFE

2009

Notes M+ HKS &

Turnover &% 87 4 460,975

Other revenue ERUIRA 4 2,588

463,563

Less ii: Administrative and other operating expenses 1T 8 & EHEE S H (31,287)

Profit before taxation FRBiEIRF 5 432,276
Taxation 118

Hong Kong Profits Tax &&1151% 7 47,701)

Deferred taxation EIEIRIE 7 57

Profit after taxation Fi{&ZFI 384,632

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2009

2008
HKS B8
198,000

3,875,841

4,073,841

(24,754)

4,049,087

(27,942)

(2,377)

4,018,768
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REBER

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009
BE_SSENF=R=1T—D8BLFE

Share Retained
capital profits Total
[iEZN RERA 1Rt
HKS & HKS & HKS &
At 1 April 2007 12200754818 2 3,351,771 3,351,773
Profit for the year FPIER] 0 4,018,768 4,018,768
At 31 March 2008 22008538318 2 7,370,539 7,370,541
Profit for the year FPIER] 0 384,632 384,632
At 31 March 2009 2200938318 2 7,755,171 7,755,173
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BALANCE SHEET
BERER

AS AT 31 MARCH 2009
ROSSNF=R=1—0

2009 2008
Notes P HKS & HKS & HKS &
ASSETS &&
Non-current assets IEREIBE
Property, plant and equipment #)2 - =K 5%1& 8 7513371 7528502
Current assets BN S E
Trade and other receivables 832 B EMEIKNER 9 209,492 19,124
Bank balances and cash $R17 RIRET 1564 10 1,773,259 1,454,915
1982751 __ 1474039
TOTAL ASSETS &EBEF 9,496,122 9,002,541
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES %R &E
Capital and reserves &7 &
Share capital lBA& 11 2 2
Retained profits RE&F 7,755,171 7,370,539
7,755173 7370541
Non-current liabilities JESRENE B
Long term loan from ultimate holding company
REFRERAINEES 12 1,508,957 1,509,657
Deferred taxation IEERIE 13 40,159 40,216
1549116 1549873
Current liabilities SRE1&(S
Other payables EAtfETR 14 149,520 79,050
Tax payable FEfRIE 42,313 3,077
191833 82,127
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BRSRIEXS & (EMREE 90,496,122 9,002,541

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 August 2009.
REERISSNF \B_+hBBhEEE8E -

(O~ 7,

Director 58 Director 58
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

REMERXR
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009
HE2009F3H31BLEFE
2009 2008
HKS &1 HKS &8
Operating activities &5 &)
Operating profit <& 5 432,276 4,049,087
Adjustments for SAEIES:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment #J2 « BiE REREITE 15,131 15,131
Gain on arising from changes in fair value of investment property
RERNHBEEZCIEE Wa 0 (3,850,000)
Interest received BINA 2 (2,588) (25,841)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
BEERHIRITERTME 444819 188,377
(Increase)/Decrease in assets EE(E/0) D
Trade and other receivables &5 R E#MEUTR (190,368) 10,854
Increase/(Decrease) in liabilities BE&IZN00RL):
Other payables E#IFETR 70470 4950
Cash from operations ZEPTSIRE 324,921 204,181
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid E{YBTER (8,465) (30,638)
Net cash from operating activities R & EENFTISINEIBE 316456 173543
Investing activities 2 &;E®)
Interest received BINAIE 2,588 25,841
Net cash from investing activities @ &F®FiERET® 0 2588 25,841
Financing activities &5 &)
New long term loan from ultimate holding company raised
ARERRIERNTFTENECE 0 700
Repayments of long term loan from ultimate holding company
FIZRBERIERATIEEER (700) 0
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities Bi&iE8) (FiA) FRSHREBEA ooy 700
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IRERIRESETEDILINPEE 318,344 200,084
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year #7318 RIRESEER 1,454,915 1,254,831
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FRZRERRESS(E 1,773,259 1454915
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents RERRELEIEBZEHR2Z O
Bank balances and cash $R17 RIRET 1564 1,773,259 1,454,915
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL
The Company is a private company incorporated in Hong Kong and its ultimate holding company is The Hong Kong
Institute of Architects, a company registered in Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The address of its registered office is 19/F, One Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

2 THE ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
In the current year, the Company has adopted all the new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") that are relevant to its
operations and effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2008. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKAS"); and Interpretations. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in substantial changes to the Company's accounting policies
and amounts reported for the current year and prior years.

The Company has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective. The Company has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these new
HKFRS would have a material impact on its results of operations and financial position.

BRI EE

1 B
RKATDRIREBEFMBIINMART - ERRIZERATRINEBHMeE BREMBE -

AADWEREBRRERR -
AADVEMPERUNRESSMREHRE 1R 192 -

2 R (BBUBRSER)
RAFE AR DRNBEBSSOLSRMOTBEEHTREBUNEBYBRSER) (ITHE [EBUBRS%E
8l ) ZEEEEEREFHEIN SR/ \FUA—BACERE - MEBUBRESLA T ESBUBRRSHEL - &
BEI AR KR BRNZSENREEUANEBUBRSENW AN TS RERBERS VWA FERABEBSFE
BEBERFE -

ZK/ATF‘JEETIEZ@% RERCPIEA MBERIMEBHREMEVHTHIS] RIGSSIVERE RS 2R o ANTIRIEESHE

CBEIERRHRBEAUCERBRERNEABCTE - MBSHEN B/ ERHRBER R BEZAZTHA
@EZ?@%%%&EZ BRRELSATE -
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards that have
significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next
year are discussed in note 18.

3 EABEER
(a)BTER
Iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁB*Ezhsé%T;afefﬁ”ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁz%}%ﬁﬁ% REERRE - SEUFRSELBBEILEBUFRSER - &
EBEEAIRABRHHNES - SIETLRINC AR RSE (RTUER) 2ERMEE -

(b) IS IRRREIEAE
MBBROZBENAERERE - EURPESIENERETERTE (EBHRAVESE) BRI TS
STEURPTRIE »

RBNSHESBUBRSEINCHUBBRRFZEERBFLAE  B5TRER - MESHE - GEIRBRSFEHRRZ
EREMBHECEE B - RARRARSHER - 2505t REBRROREBEAETHERREEBBIERZSER D
BOIBCSBHMRRREEMIED » ISHRENERE BRI EMRRMNESENEEREBERBEMED
BEHCEE - ERBSTASBRIRGEIES °

NADFFERATFGST RABEIRSRIFLHE - SO BBNETEEN - RIBHIHESH BB INEMET - WX
BSOS EBFESHRURHE - RISHIsHESI#ERIRERRURHEER -

EMEE18M  EFEH NEENMBREARGSIEEATEMNS NIRELSANVFERR - ERBREBUBRSLE
RUIFHBfSET
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
values, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Office equipment 20%

(d) Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair values using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

(e) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in income statement.

3 EASEHBEER (&)
(C) 3 ~ BRI R2ER
Y% ~ BB RRIBRILBEENNBITENRIELERBIIER -

% BERRBEEEBCEDRBEGSITERTH - BAGSHGEE (WB) &  UERAMBEENA - IER

Wh:

HEN=E 20%

WMARHIE 20%
(d) &M=

REVERREESEEHSITEURIET R OWFENZERRC TR, 2R -

REVERDDZEMASE - BIEEERZNA - S EBE - RKEMFLRAVEIR - AREVENVLEERHE
E 2Bt ANEEFE RS ESRA RIS IO ©

(e)ERMTIR
ERTIMRIEZENRZETHSE - IREESERERTNEERTMEE - THMEERTHNEBENR A YE
B5tE - ANBEISTEREERTHNEE (BBBERENVEERECENEEREZNEERIN) MEEBGEZR
SRA - RYBERHFREABBERIATNEZEENEENTMEBEI N VLEE - RINBEZBERRERRNATBERIE
ZEMBENTHNBENEER/ERZMARFIRIBARER
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets
The Company's financial assets are classified into loans and receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

3 EASEHER (&)
(e)EMTIR (&)
ERHEE
ANTDERNEEFBRANERREURE - FTEBBIEEHAEETHNEELR S JHEEERRKILER - ZIEEH
ABERERMERAUKEPNHECFHRENERNEECTHEESSE °

BERFIRZE

EFNRERSIETMEEN#EMARINEBBB D ENRUABTE - EENRRIERIEENES TR AFES
o (WEA) BRBENTEETRGESI AR (BRI EEEEMERERFROMEBARR
=B REMAREMBENITR) ENEEBREFEOFZE -

ERMREWRRIR

ERRBIRERIIFRNEETSREMESECRIBC R IFITETMEE - RDBERBECSHED - BRR
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(R T XEMEEREGECSSR) -
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ENE  FEHNEESFRE - BIECSBERIEE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:
- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
- default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
- itbecoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Company's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period and observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a balance aforesaid
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

EXBFHBR (&)
(e)EMTIR (&)
EHMEE (48)
ETREERENSEEEEE:
- BOASRSHFHREAMHRE :
REERIT BB EF RHAE 5 K
- EBERATERRERTHEMR
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Company's financial liabilities are generally classified into other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including long term loan from ultimate holding company and other payables) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

3 EAGHEXR (&)
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(f) Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Animpairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the tangible and intangible assets is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

(g) Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(h) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.
i) Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.
ii) Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount.

3 EASBEER (&)
(f) B EENRIEERE
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WBiEst - AR TR BHEENRTEL EUNTNOTRETSET -

HREBEERRE FBECREEREESOTNOER - CIRAZEELERBEFERDBIEGEMERE
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Taxation
Income tax expenses represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

3 EASEHBEER (&)
(i) BiIR
RIBFASTISARERIRBERBLERIELIRA]
ERENREDRFERRRAANSE - BRRGNEBRRATRANNE - WOBREASEEEMFERERRAT
OB ARSZBIES - IMAEEERRARTRRIIVEAZIRE - ARTNEIBAREEE - DREEEEMAAH
BIEVRASTE -

BAERBRMERBRAMBRENEERGBEREELAINSIEEANBN BEREME ZEE - WIEESBREE
FRE - BERESERFIHMEERRNEFEZ2ER - MELRBEERRINBILKRBRIEERREN - T
RUUEHTIRERFERRKER - SERFERERR—ERATEERNVBNNAZESSIEN RS CRESHEMN)
PRBEREMEEREGEMSIE - AFSEBZSFEERES -

BAREEECRBESREEGEBFRE - WHOEAATEBERAERRBANNOZ LA DEENEE -

BAERBDZBHREENEE - BEREBESINBUST ABLDEK @ EBHERIISNSt \RABRZEE - ERTERE
MBRRAE L PRI -
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TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE

EXRBRAEMBIA
2009 2008
HKS &L HKS &g
Turnover &%
Rental income from investment property 2 & )2V A 460,975 198,000
Other revenue EARUTA
Bank interest income R{TRISUTA 2,588 25,841
Gain on arising from changes in fair value of investment property
HBWNNEEYERBE 0 3,850,000
2,588 3,875,841
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
BRI B0 AR A
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging the following:
BRREIERNESTEUATSE ¢
2009 2008
HKS$ &S HKS &g
Auditors' remuneration £ 2IEmEHS 3,000 3,000
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment ) - = R&IHITE 15,131 15,131

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
BT

None of the directors received any remuneration in respect of their services to the Company during the year (2008 : Nil).

KADFEAREERFROARNLADRENBBEMOESIREIBE - (20085 )
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7 TAXATION
wnE
2009 2008
HKSE#E HKS &
The tax credit/(charge) comprises IRIBEE) ~ (RBzH) B45 :
Hong Kong Profits Tax &8HE/K :
Current year XFEE (68,657) (27,942)
Overprovision in prior years {8+ & E #5858 20,956 0
(47,701) (27,942)
Deferred tax credit/(charge) [Note 13] ELERERED, () (Mist+=) 57 (2377)
e 30319

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2008 : 17.5%) on estimated assessable profits for the year.
SBNEBRDIAEEGEFTERRAENIZ 16.5% (—FS/\F : 17.5%) 5t& -

The tax credit/(charge) for the year can be reconciled to the profit/(loss) before taxation per the income statement as
follows:

AFEECRERD,/ (RESE) BINSRERFRATAEN, (Fi8) WEROT :

2009 2008
HKS B HKS B
Profit/(Loss) before taxation BRRBIEF, (i) 432,276 4,049,087
Tax credit/(charge) of Hong Kong Profit Tax rate of 16.5% (2008 : 17.5%)
RIEED,/(RBEZL) - EBFERE 16.5% (CZBH/\F : 17.5%) (71,326) (708,591)
Decrease in opening deferred tax liability resulting from decrease in applicable tax rate
RAFEHHIDREREBENFE 2,299 0
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose “NEINFFRSZ HEVRFE S/ 427 678,272
Overprovision in prior years 8+ EE 5848 20,956 0
Tax credit/(charge) for the year FFERERD, (REH) (47,644) (30,319)
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
E NGy SE

Cost or valuation R A S {& &
At 1 April 2007 1R2007FE48318

Net increase in fair value recognised
in the income statement

RN NDEEIBIII R

At 31 March 2008 and at 31 March 2009
520084 38 318 RiR2009%38318

Depreciation R2i5IFE
At 1 April 2007 53200784818
Provided for the year FFESZH

At 31 March 2008 1220084343318
Provided for the year FFESZH

At 31 March 2009 122009438318

Carrying values IRE{E
At 31 March 2009 22009343318

At 31 March 2008 122008438318

Investment Leasehold Office
property improvements equipment
B HENETEE MNERIE
HKS & #8 HKS B8 HKS B8
3,650,000 67,600 14,705
3,850,000 0 0

_..7200000 67,600 S 5 745
0 28,800 9,872

0 13,520 1,611

0 42,320 11,483

0 13,520 1,611
_________ 0 oo .22840 oo 13094
7,500,000 11,760 1,611
7,500,000 25,280 3,222
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Total
Rt
HKS B s

3,732,305

3,850,000

7,582,305

7,513,371

7,528,502
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8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
W= BMERRE (&)
The carrying values of investment properties held by the Company as at the balance sheet date comprised:

RATHREYROVERSSHREED T T

2009 2008
HKS & HKS B

In Hong Kong held on IR&EBFE :
Leases of over 50 years A+ FHEKY 7,500,000 7,500,000

The Company's investment property is held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes is
measured using the fair value model and is classified and accounted for as investment property.

AAQLEBHEREREVIURIETNAIRENSE  WUALAFERASERDBRIEEMENE °

The fair value of the Company's investment property at 31 March 2009 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on 2 November 2007 by RHL Appraisal Ltd., who is member of the Hong Kong Institute of Valuers, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation, which conforms to the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standards on Properties, was arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

RROREYER_BSFINF=_F=T—"B0RVE RSB ASNZSSSFNTHEBREIETRLATNGHEMERE
ZANTHEBREBSRATESHBEER - AN HHEEERHALELECKR - ZOENSESBAISMES IR
BERE  REZHLESTNRENDSIFEMERE -

9 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

B 3 RE MBI
2009 2008
HKS & HKS B
Rental receivables FEINFAZER R 111,205 0
Deposits and prepayments & R F8IVIES 98,287 19,124

209,492 19,124

Before accepting any new customer, the Company will assess the potential customer's credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed twice a year. 100% of the rental receivables are neither
past due nor impaired and have the best credit rating.

AKAQEENTTHZ R » SETEERELFIGREZIFNEEERIH S LELRRSE - SECEERTESE
FHEMR - FrERaBHNRRENRBINHTRRYEERE < S8R

148 The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2009



10

11

12

13

BANK BALANCES

FIECE o2

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0.001% to 0.01% (2008 : 0.01% to 2.25%) per annum.
RITIHIZMEFANZERB0.01 BE0.5 BstR (ZBB/\F : 0.01 BEE2.25 BFMNZE) -

SHARE CAPITAL
(SZN
2009 2008
HKSEHE HKS B
Authorised SERE :
10,000 ordinary shares of HKS 1 each
10,000 REER - SREBE 17T 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid BT REIR :
2 ordinary shares of HKS1 each
2 REER - SREE 1T 2 2

LONG TERM LOAN FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
ERERNTEER
The loan is interest free, unsecured and not repayable within one year.

FZEERRRBER » WP RAFF—F R -

DEFERRED TAXATION
The deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior years are as follows:

TRINEABSHERBERSBEEBCERZREREEE (BE) REFEE

Accelerated tax
depreciation

IRRIETE

HKSE 18

At 1 April 2007 1220074818 (37,839)
Credited/(Charged) to income statement A (F08) BHEXK (2,377)

At 31 March 2008 #22008%38318 (40,216)
Effect of change in tax rate 1RZS B8 572 2,299
Credited/(Charged) to income statement A~ (308) Bk (2,242)
At 31 March 2009 #22009%£38318 (40,159)
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OTHER PAYABLES
HEIR
2009 2008
HKS B HKS &8
Deposits received BIILE 143,520 73,050
Accruals [ESTIEE 6,000 6,000

149,520 79,050

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

EARRERE

The Company manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Company will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Company's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.
ANTEBHEERN  LERANINIERREIGTERSHIEE - OB NEaEEEBHRRACFEFEMAFE
EEEFNRSO0OR

RATCERRBE FFE—F -

The capital structure of the Company consists of cash and cash equivalents, bank and other borrowings, and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued share capital and retained earnings.

ARG BEABEEBRETRRTSE RIOREMEERARIRAERSBREGREG(BERTRARREAN
PTAEAR) °

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and risks associates with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Company will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends and new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

ANTBESREBRELNDE - ERBRC—HD ESLEREAVARSRARER EHBRAR - RIZEESEE
RATRBEZAVRR ~ BTHRURZBTHE - DILEHRERERNDBE -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
TR TR

(a) Categories of financial instruments

SHTENE
2009 2008
HKS & HKS B 18
Financial assets SRI&SE
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents)
ERFEIGRE(BERERIREEED)
Trade and other receivables & 8 & EMEIRIE 111,205 0
Bank balances and cash {71584 RIRE 1,773,259 1,454,915
1,884,464 1,454,915
Financial liabilities £R1&& - -
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost ARl & E 17 A AT
Other payables E{fEIRIB 143,520 73,050
Long term loan from ultimate holding company RE &R N TIE S 1,508,957 1,509,657

1,652,477 1,582,707

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

SRIEREIEBFERIR

The Company's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables, bank balances and cash, other
payables and long term loan from ultimate holding company. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
ANDEET/M T EBBRNESRRREMBIR « FBITRIRTHE - HUEMERRERERATIREER -
ST T EFBEREENGRE Y5/l TEEERREEMBRRAIRRR) - EERRERADETRR - E*QE@
SIRPERFHIN T - SEERBUEEEERTENRR - LEREERBIETESE0 -

(i) Market risk

HERR
Interest rate risk
R RSR
The Company's cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to variable-rate bank balances and deposits (see note 10).
The management considers the Company's exposure of the variable-rate bank balances and deposits to interest rate
risk is not significant. Accordingly, no interest rate sensitivity analysis is prepared.
ANTEHEFRIFPTHHBRERABEIRTANEER (15110) - SEEBRBRALTNRBE B AASZ T RIBITHH
RERIHEEXNCNEBRE - AEANREREDITTNVEZRE
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

ERTH &)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices (continued)
SRIAREEEIRRIER (F)
(i) Credit risk

EERR

As at 31 March 2009, the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Company due to failure to perform an obligation by the counterparties, is the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the balance sheet.
RISSNF=RA=1—0  ARTIRHSREETETERANTELVHBENEASZ R ANEERR - HBEE
BEXRMIIBAEEATREE CRBEMESE -

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the majority of the counterparties are reputable banks or banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

MEEZNERRRER - ERE—H RECREETREETCRESEEETRIRT -

The Company has concentration of credit risk as 100% of the trade receivable is due from a dominant customer at the
balance sheet date.

RIEEHARIZBVRBER DB —BEEZSF - RItEERRERED -

(iii) Liquidity risk
REEZRR
The Company's policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents and have available funding through bank
and other borrowings to meet its working capital requirements
ANIRRBRGRDRE RIRESEEBURBERTREAMEERCHEEETTE -

The Company monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g. trade receivables) and projected cash flows
from operations.

RADEBRAKBIEABDETSE LR  GRAETRROAR - K TESEREMB IERVBEE (WHEI
B2RN) NEHBURRBSEEEBRNRBIRTMASE
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
TRIR (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices (continued)

EHAMSIEEFERBER (&)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)
neEBETRRE (&)

The maturity profile of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2009 and 2008, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, was as follows:

NN s

Other payables EHENTRIE
Long term loan from ultimate holding company

REFRERATNVEE

Other payables EHIENTRIE
Long term loan from ultimate holding company

REFRERATNVEE

(iv) Fair value estimation

NEELE

The carrying value less impairment provision of receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values.
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual

WEEREE B RSB 2SR NEFRSHRGRRTMAEIRW T

31 March 2009

20098385318

Less than Over
1 year 1 year
DHR—4F ZHR—4F
HKS B HKS &8
143,520 0
0 1,508,957
143,520 1,508,957
31 March 2008

2008438318

Less than Over
1 year 1 year
DHR—4F ZHR—4F
HKS B HKS &8
73,050 0

0 1,509,657

73,050 1,509,657

Total carrying
amount
)

HKS B

143,520

1,508,957

1,652,477

Total carrying
amount
EEE)

HKS B

73,050

1,509,657

1,582,707

cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Company for similar ﬁnancial instruments.

BUGRIE RV RBOIREEIRBERBOEER - RRAVENGENH -

SRS TEYBIREMENRIFLRGS
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17 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
REHESAE
The Company as a lessor

FATEREEA

At the balance sheet date, the Company had contracted with tenants in respect of its investment properties for future
minimum lease payments which fall due as follows:

BERGED  BRANIHRENZEEE SRR - ERRREEZIRCERBLT

2009 2008

HKS B HKSE 18

Within one year —&F R 492,480 21,450
In the second to fifth years inclusive 1R FEERFERN 52,955 0

545435 21,450

Operating lease arrangements represent rentals receivable by the Company for certain of its premises. Leases are
negotiated for terms ranging from two years to three years.

KEHEREBALTMENFBNCEE - BV TH—RECR_E=F -
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18 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
ERSEEERAE

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

S A EERERZEERIR

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used in applying the Company's accounting policies have
a significant impact on the Company's financial position and operating results. Some of the accounting policies require
the Company to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are inherently uncertain. The critical accounting
judgements in applying the Company's accounting policies are described below.
RAROESHBRRIRAB G RAMBSHAEB CEBRUBINNBEREAFTE - LOBSIHRFZ2ALDELBGE!
RHE > EPPRAECHE - ARTSFPERCERSSHHES RIS N -

(a) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
REARGIHERTE
Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts are assessed and provided based on the director's regular review
of aging analysis and evaluation of collectibility. A considerable level of judgement is exercised by the directors when
assessing the credit worthiness and past collection history of each individual customers. An increase or decrease
in the above impairment loss would affect the net profit in future years.
AEERBESSHRH O CHSRREINOME TS - FERERERFBILHEHE - EBGNESBEIACER
TERMRBENORESLE - STEESREHE - RIRER BB NHEDEZEAIRFE B -

(b) Impairment of assets
BEG5EHE
The Company reviews the carrying amounts of the assets at each balance sheet date to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. When indication of impairment is identified, management prepares discounted
future cashflow to assess the differences between the carrying amount and value in use and provides for impairment
loss. Any change in the assumptions adopted in the profit forecasts would increase or decrease in the provision of
impairment loss and affect the Company's net asset value.
RANTERBR/EDERENEERFBINEENRATR MMECELEETORECSERE - HERAENR - &
BERRHERR\TAUSEDEREBBEWETRIESERE - A2 EAISHEAC KEREBRITTERIE
MR BEGERERFEANT CEETE -

(c) Depreciation
wE
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives. The Company
reviews annually the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimation.

% - BERRBREEBIMTEXERAEHGSI UEAFHSE - AN DGFRIBECTEHAFHREFGEE (W
B) - HEAZGSIEENEREE)  BRBBINERST I PRHE -

(d) Valuation of investment property
REYZES1E
As described in note 8, the investment properties were revalued by independent professional valuers on a market
value basis at each balance sheet date. Such valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results. Any increase or decrease in the valuations would
affect the Company's results in future years.
WHTEESATIL » REVXCHBIEXGEMNEESBERBZRIMUDEELESHGE - BEGLEDRES TER
7 WEPDE HERNRENSHERBREEAER - SHEBSTTUBINHEORFERNTRREE IFEE -
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FOR MANAGEMENT INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY E#HtESBES2EMA
HKIA SERVICES LIMITED B8R EMBERFERAT

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT F#i#E &3k
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

B|E2009F3331 B ILFE
2009 2008
HKSEHE HKSEHE HKS &S
Rental income FHEUA 460,975 _ 198,000
Other revenue EfthUgA
Bank interest income $R17H] QUA 2,588 25,841
Gain on arising from changes in fair value of investment property
BRERADBEZCINEN = 0 3,850,000
2588 __ 3875841
463563 4073841
Less: Administrative and other operating expenses
W TBREMEESZE
Auditors' remuneration R EEMEE 3,000 3,000
Bank charges $R/7& 8 300 300
Business registration fee E2EsHME 450 2,600
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
YD ~ BB RERIBITE 15,131 15,131
Insurance 1R 719 723
Legal and professional fees JAfR2 RSB H 10,253 3,000
Repair and maintenance #HERIRE 200 0
Stamp duty ENTER 1,234 0
(31,287) _ (24754)
Profit before taxation FRE{EIZFI 432,276 4,049,087
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1965
Choi Hung Estate $4T8

1969
AlA Building EERFIRRAE

1973
Kowloon Hospital West Wing
hEBREE

1974
Sheraton Hotel ZEREE/S

1975
May Tower #§%8

1976

Sheng Kung Hiu Bishop Mok Sau Tsang
Secondary School

BEABRBEEEDS

1977
Aircraft Catering Building
FBEERIGNTY

1978
Hong Kong Arts Centre & &Il

1979
42 Sassoon Road D EE425%

1980
Hung Hom Bay Centre #LEEI)

orc

1981
Sui Wo Court TR

1981
Pak Sui Yuen B3#438

f Merit

1981
Franki Centre FTDI)
1981

Cho Yiu Chuen Estate THZETB

rtificate o

1982
Landmark BithEE5
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1982
St. Stephen's College BT iRR P&

teo

1982
Mei Lam Estate Phase 1 SEMTREE —H3

tificate of =

1982
Pak Tak Yuen Phase 1 183855 —58

1983
Aberdeen Market Complex
EESHRBHHAE

1983
The Discovery Bay 15

1983
St. John's Building E24083 X &

1983
Yan Oi Tong Community and Indoor
Sports Centre

CEEMBRENBAPI
1984
Canossian Convent Primary and Secondary School

RiHER ()\BROPBEH)

1984
Mong Tung Wan Youth Hostel 2887 &£ fixiit

1984
French International School

B

lerit

1984

Wayfoong Plaza E&d)

1985
Exchange Square X3 E 5

1985
Siu Hong Court Home Ownership Scheme

Ke

1985
Goldfish & Centenary Pavilions
ERAEEREEBREOFRSAR

Preside =

1985
The Academy for Performing Arts
SEREBR




IS e

= e

1986
6A Bowen Road BEBEHD

1986

- ..f/
- ol e
i -,
oy o MO

Hong Kong Jockey Club Members'
Clubhouse, Shatin BEE S Z)HEAT

1986
Thomas De La Rue Ltd

EANREEERATME

1986

Pak Sha O Youth Hostel B350 SEIRS

1987

Mei Lam Indoor Recreation Centre

EMENEEE

1987

Ruttonjee Centre 23APIN

1987

St Joan of Arc Secondary School

BEaRPs

1987

Tuen Mun Technical Institute

EFIT 20

1988

Bayview Residential Development

BBMNHELES
1988
Harcourt House BB AR

1988

Tsuen Wan Columbarium %8R

1988
Ellen's Lodge BT B

1989
The Repulse Bay /&R

1989

Hong Kong International School

SBERSR

1989
Heng On Estate
BEZEBEPRAE

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2009 159



h List of Past HKIA Annual Awards

. EEBBRENeTFR—BX

160

HIHIIMIMTINY

Y

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2009

1989
Tai Fu Tai KX&
Pres. S Prize &

rize E1=

1990

The Hong Kong Housing Authority
Headquarters

EEEREEERT

1990
Hong Kong Baptist College Campus
Redevelopment

BBREAS

1990
Hong Kong Science Museum
BENBE

1991
Clague Garden TTE&E#HTIB

1991
Lok Fu Shopping Centre Il
KEFH_H

1991
Kun Ting Study Hall $3iE®%=

President’s Pr
Presiaent’s Prize

1992
Kwong Yuen Estate Commercial Centre

BERUES

ert

1992
The Royal Hong Kong Jockey Club Happy
Valley Clubhouse BEEFEEAT

Certificate c

1992
Visual Arts Centre, Hong Kong Museum

of Art
BEBRBEMPIL

1992
The Royal Hong Kong Jockey Club
Racecourse Jockey Club Box

EEBFTDVBTBTSMEE

1993
Entertainment Building 1R44fF

1993
Hong Kong Technical College (Tsing Yi)
BREBIESR

Ctifi =

Certific

1994
Citibank Plaza BEEBBIT

1994
Dragon Centre FGh,8EPIN

t



List of .Pa'st HKIA Annual !;'Awards
EESERINDSHEES B

1994
Pubic Toilet at Hing Fat Street

S5k I B AR

1995
Peninsula Hotel Extension

+BBEERIR

1995
Singapore International School

FIREREB R

1995
Ho Sin Hang Engineering Building, CUHK
§§¢IK$@§@I&KE

1995
Hong Kong Industrial Technology Centre
FBITERNKEDIL

1995
Chan Nam Chong Memorial School
BESkTBR (FHRHAE)

Presigent’s ¥

1996
Hong K

ertifica

ong Templ

€ SZ4Z

1996
Lingnan College 38R528Bz

1996
West Island School Fo&8H2

1996
Broadway Cinematheque
BEEBFPIL

Drocidontc P
President’s Prize &

1997
Chuang's City Tower 3HiAE

Certificate

1997
Jockey Club Environmental Building

BITRRE

erit

1998
Graduate House BB A BHRLEE

1998
Hong Kong International Airport
Passenger Terminal

SBERKESENE

1998
Verbena Heights &I876E

eda
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,
Cathay City
A
' \

2000
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1998
KCRC Hung Hom Station Renovation and
Extension

NERBANBESERER TR

1998
Ohel Leah Synagogue
FBBARE

1998
Fu House 8%

Prize

1999
Tung Chung Crescent SR8

1999

Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Jockey
Club Building

EEEBENBRBFTEAR

Certificate

1999
Hong Kong Station & Development Phase 1

HEPRIOR L E—BRE

Cert

1999
Tsing Yi Complex SXRizSKig

t B

e of Merit (&2

1999
Health Education Exhibition & Resources
Centre FEHBERBRERDIY

7e

2000
Dragonair / CNAC Headquarters
BEMERDERM (£8) Kig

2000
The Hong Kong Museum of Coastal Defence

BEB IS

2000
Cathay Pacific Airways Headquarters
MENTRATAIR

2000

Tung Chung Town Centre Development

RRDPLEE (FED)

2000
University of Hong Kong Kadoorie
Biological Sciences Building

BEAREERLENNB AR

2000

Wing Kwong Pentecostal Holiness Church
hOHERERNE

2000

Hong Kong Wetland Park Phase |
SERNLABE—H

Pres St =



List of Pa'st HKIA Annual Awards

EESERIMe s B8R

2000

Jockey Club Mt. Davis Youth Hostel
Eﬁggiﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ

2000
HK Garden at '99 International

Horticultural Exposition in Kunming
BHOHRIBEE - BEE

C

2001
Australian International School, Hong Kong

BEEM

2001
8‘ Queen'

ItAward =S

s Road Central 2BEAEP8HR

2001
56 Plantation Road E#&3E56%%
HKI/ ward &2 A S =

2001

Terrace HEELE )

2001

Mega iAdvantage
2001

The Bamboo Pavilion Festival of Vision -
Hong Kong in Berlin
HMIACE - 15

A for Me

embers’ Works Ou

2001
Murray House S£FUi%

2001

Developing Innovative School Design
Parameters in Hong Kong for 21st Century

saaw - = . 21O S BB A S TR
il A B B f . S Award
551 =
2002
The Hong Kong Institute of Education Jockey
Club Primary School
EEUEBRERD)\P

2002

Hillview Court EEEE—S%

2002
Kingsto

n International School TRHT SIEIERE KL
President’s Prize 242

tsFrize E1=

2002
Veterinary Laboratory at Tai Lung Farm

KA RS

2002
Boao Canal Village R &R B

AW I Jutsiae or ong Kong
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2002
He Xiangning Al

s Works

rt Gallery @& REAM88

2003

1 Peking Road JtRE—3%

a

2003
Public Health Laboratory Centre
A

EAo

2003
Improvement of Sai Kung Waterfront
aEREREIR

President’s Prize &f<4Eik

2003
Lantern Wonderland #& K& E

nt’s Prize Sf<42

President’

2003
Fairview Park Alliance Church SE®55#E%

President’s Prize &<

2003
CYTung Maritime Museum Ew5 212 #8168

ong Kong

2003
Sheraton Suzhou Hotel FNRBEREXBS

A s"Works O

2003
Sau Mau Ping Shopping Centre and Plaza

BEAEERES

2004

Diocesan Boys' School Primary Section

RESER/)\BE

2004
No. 21 Severn Road HE&)&E215%

tAward &8EX 8 AT

2004
EMSD Headquarters Building
BETRERBAE

H. lerit Award 25825605

2004
SK Telecom Headquarter

‘orks Outsidk

2004

Shantou University Student Activity Centre
Phase |
JWBRASSLE TR PN —
A ‘orks (

2004
Fanling Open Space in Area 18 & 21
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EESsRENS SRR BR

2004
Tao Fong Shan Christian Centre SR\BEHHM

je

2004
Margaret Trench Red Cross School
BEARBI+TE8S

2004

Universal Accessibility - Best Practices
and Guidelines

17 - RIBIESIES|

R T 2005
ANt L Hong Kong Wetland Park Phase Il

2005

Tai Kok Tsui Municipal Services Building X
BEDBRAE

2005

Sunny Bay Station fiR&il

2005

A Bridge too Far, A Dream Comes True

Y

2005
Boatyard : Kingship Marine Headquarters (China)
$8 : REBBDUERATRL

s' Works

2005
Vanke Chengdu Commercial Complex
Wﬁﬁﬂﬁbzm%gtﬁ

Work

2005
Adrenaline

2005

Residential Development No. 52
Hollywood Road

ﬁ EE525R

2005
The Centres of Central c(PIBPINE

2005
Feasibility Study for Establishment of Air

Ventilation Assessment System

ERRBFCOATTERR

2005
Hong Kong Heritage Discovery Centre at
Kowloon Park
BEXDHRA
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2005
HKS+H Plastic and Reconstruction
Surgery Centre

BRER

<

2005
Police Headquarters, Arsenal House

ERRNERAR

2006
Stanley Municipal Services Building

TAEDRARE

2006
A Purpose Designed Building for Centralised
Science Laboratories, The Chinese University of
Hong Kong

BEPXASRBEEFINR

Ward g/8:ER6132

2006
S.K.H. St Andrew's Primary School and S.K.H.
St Mary's Church Mok Hing Yiu College
BNSEZRN)\BRENE
EROESRERDS

HKIA Mer | BB

it Award BB sapra sy

2006

Education Resource Center cum Public
Transport Interchange at Kowloon Tong
NERBBEERPIVNEAEGIER

ard &/8FEF = E S L

2006
Clubhouse of Kunshan Shimao Butterfly Bay
BUEEGSHESH

2006
Kunming EXPO Eco - Town INTEGER project
BHHELERMINTEGERTE LR

s Work (

2006
VICE VERSA Hong Kong, China Exhibition at Venice
Biennale International Architecture Exhibition, 2006
2006 A EHERRAEFTRIASER

[R2IWR Srbihr) 288
An S Work (

2006
Reconstruction of Wong Shek Public Pier
ﬁEﬂﬂﬁEE@IE

2006
St Andrew's Church B2 {BZEE

2006
Quality of Life for Public Housing with
Emphasis on Health and Safety Issues

BRERZEREMNAHBRESERWR




List of Pa'st HKIA Annual Awards

EESsRENS SRR BR

2006
Micro-climate Research Studies for
Sustainable Public Housing Development
THERRLAROHURRHR

i d-A

2006
Beautification of Tsim Sha Tsui Promenade

LVEBERELCIR

2007
No. 10, 12, 16 & 18 Pollock's Path
LE10,12, 16K 185%

2007
Dormitory & Sports Facilities at Diocesan
Boys' School

RESER-BAE  BRORBSARE

2007
Mont Orchid Riverlet Phase 2
$UBRWRS”H

2007
17 Miles Phase 1 +1C38(—H)

2007
HKYWCA Conference Centre and Guesthouse
BEEEBHLEFEES

2007
Xiamen International Cruise Terminal

EPBERIRESER R AR

2007
All-weather Swimming Pool for China
Holiness Church Living Spirit College

PEERSBRPSZXRBE I

Presic s Prize Ef=42

2007
megARTstore
megAR Tstore BB BV BT RS ER
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